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PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT

(To Prospectus dated October 30, 2012)

2,000,000 Shares

8.00% Series B Cumulative Redeemable Perpetual

Preferred Shares

Tsakos Energy Navigation Limited
(Liquidation Preference $25 Per Share)

We are offering 2,000,000 of our 8.00% Cumulative Redeemable Perpetual Series B Preferred Shares, par value $1.00 per share, liquidation
preference $25.00 per share (the �Series B Preferred Shares�).

Dividends on the Series B Preferred Shares are cumulative from the date of original issue and will be payable quarterly in arrears on the 30th
day of January, April, July and October of each year, commencing July 30, 2013, when, as and if declared by our board of directors. Dividends
will be payable out of amounts legally available therefore at an initial rate equal to 8.00% per annum of the stated liquidation preference, subject
to adjustment as described in this prospectus supplement.

At any time on or after July 30, 2018, the Series B Preferred Shares may be redeemed, in whole or in part, out of amounts legally available
therefore, at a redemption price of $25.00 per share plus an amount equal to all accumulated and unpaid dividends thereon to the date of
redemption, whether or not declared. If (i) we fail to comply with certain covenants (a �Covenant Default�), (ii) we experience certain defaults
under any of our credit facilities (a �Cross Default�), (iii) four quarterly dividends payable on the Series B Preferred Shares are in arrears (a
�Dividend Payment Default�) or (iv) the Series B Preferred Shares are not redeemed in whole by July 30, 2019 (a �Failure to Redeem�), the dividend
rate payable on the Series B Preferred Shares shall increase, subject to an aggregate maximum rate per annum of 25% prior to July 30, 2018 and
30% thereafter, to a rate that is 1.25 times the dividend rate payable on the Series B Preferred Shares as of the close of business on the day
immediately preceding the Covenant Default, Cross Default, Divided Payment Default or Failure to Redeem, as applicable, and on each
subsequent Dividend Payment Date, the dividend rate payable shall increase to a rate that is 1.25 times the dividend rate payable on the Series B
Preferred Shares as in effect as of the close of business on the day immediately preceding such Dividend Payment Date, until the Covenant
Default, Cross Default or Dividend Payment Default is cured or the Series B Preferred Shares are no longer outstanding. Please read �Description
of Series B Preferred Shares�Dividends�Dividend Payment Dates�Increase in Base Dividend Rate Following a Covenant Default, Cross Default,
Dividend Payment Default or Failure to Redeem.�
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We intend to apply to have the Series B Preferred Shares listed on The New York Stock Exchange. Currently, there is no public market for the
Series B Preferred Shares.

We have granted the underwriters the right to purchase 300,000 additional Series B Preferred Shares within 30 days from the date of this
prospectus supplement.

Investing in our Series B Preferred Shares involves a high degree of risk. Please read �Risk  Factors� beginning on page S-14 of this
prospectus supplement and page 3 of the accompanying base prospectus.

Per Share Total
Public offering price $ 25.000 $ 50,000,000
Underwriting discount(1) $ 0.875 $ 1,750,000
Proceeds (before expenses) to us $ 24.125 $ 48,250,000

(1) We have agreed to reimburse the underwriters for certain expenses in connection with this offering.
See �Underwriting.�

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities commission has approved or disapproved of these securities or
determined if this prospectus supplement or the accompanying base prospectus is truthful or complete. Any representation to the contrary is a
criminal offense.

The underwriters expect to deliver the Series B Preferred Shares on or about May 10, 2013.

Joint Bookrunners

Incapital DNB Markets
Sole Structuring Agent

Co-Managers
Clarkson Capital Markets Brock Capital

May 2, 2013
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ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT

This document is in two parts. The first part is the prospectus supplement, which describes the specific terms of this offering. The second part is
the accompanying base prospectus, which gives more general information, some of which may not apply to this offering. Generally, when we
refer to the �prospectus,� we are referring to both parts combined. If information in the prospectus supplement conflicts with information in the
accompanying base prospectus, you should rely on the information in this prospectus supplement.

Any statement made in this prospectus or in a document incorporated or deemed to be incorporated by reference into this prospectus will be
deemed to be modified or superseded for purposes of this prospectus to the extent that a statement contained in this prospectus supplement or in
any other subsequently filed document that is also incorporated by reference into this prospectus modifies or supersedes that statement. Any
statement so modified or superseded will not be deemed, except as so modified or superseded, to constitute a part of this prospectus.

You should rely only on the information contained in or incorporated by reference in this prospectus. We have not authorized anyone to provide
you with different information. We are not making an offer of the Series B Preferred Shares in any state or jurisdiction where the offer is not
permitted. You should not assume that the information contained in this prospectus or the information that is incorporated by reference herein is
accurate as of any date other than its respective date.

We expect that delivery of the Series B Preferred Shares will be made against payment therefor on or about the date specified on the cover page
of this prospectus supplement, which will be the six business days following the date of this prospectus supplement (this settlement cycle being
referred to as �T+6�). You should note that trading on the Series B Preferred Shares on the date of this prospectus supplement or in the next two
business days may be affected by the T+6 settlement. Please read �Underwriting.�

Acting pursuant to the Exchange Control Act of 1972 (and its related regulations), the Bermuda Monetary Authority has given general
permission for the issue and transfer of any of our securities, including our Series B Preferred Shares, to and between persons non-resident of
Bermuda for exchange control purposes provided our shares are listed on an appointed stock exchange, which includes the New York Stock
Exchange. This prospectus may be filed with the Registrar of Companies in Bermuda in accordance with Bermuda law. In granting such
permission and in accepting this prospectus for filing, neither the Bermuda Monetary Authority nor the Registrar of Companies in Bermuda
accepts any responsibility for our financial soundness or the correctness of any of the statements made or opinions expressed in this prospectus.

S-ii
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SUMMARY

This summary highlights important information contained elsewhere in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying base prospectus. You
should carefully read this prospectus supplement, the accompanying base prospectus and the documents incorporated by reference to
understand fully our business and the terms of our Series B Preferred Shares, as well as the tax and other considerations that are important to
you in making your investment decision. You should consider carefully the �Risk Factors� section beginning on page S-14 of this prospectus
supplement and on page 3 of the accompanying base prospectus to determine whether an investment in our Series B Preferred Shares is
appropriate for you. Unless otherwise indicated, all references in this prospectus supplement to �dollars� and �$� are to, and amounts are
presented in, U.S. Dollars, and financial information presented in this prospectus supplement is prepared in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles in the United States, or GAAP.

Unless we otherwise specify, when used in this prospectus supplement, the terms �Tsakos,� the �Company,� �we,� �our� and �us� refer to
Tsakos Energy Navigation Limited and its subsidiaries, except that when such terms are used in this prospectus supplement in reference to the
Series B Preferred Shares, they refer specifically to Tsakos Energy Navigation Limited.

Our Company

Tsakos Energy Navigation Limited is a leading provider of international seaborne petroleum product and crude oil transportation services and, as
of April 26, 2013, operated a fleet of 45 modern petroleum product tankers and crude oil carriers that provide world-wide marine transportation
services for national, major and other independent oil companies and refiners under long, medium and short-term charters. Our fleet also
includes one 2007-built Liquefied Natural Gas (�LNG�) carrier and two 2013-built DP2 shuttle suezmax tankers, bringing our total operating fleet
to 48 vessels. In addition, we have also entered into certain agreements with established shipyards, Sungdong Shipbuilding and Hyundai Heavy
Industries, for additional vessels, and are in discussions with these shipyards regarding the number, size, classification and timing of the vessels
to be constructed, including at least one additional LNG carrier.

We believe that we have established a reputation as a safe, reliable and cost efficient operator of modern and well-maintained tankers. We also
believe that these attributes, together with our strategy of proactively working towards meeting our customers� chartering needs, has contributed
to our ability to attract world-class energy producers as customers and to our success in obtaining charter renewals.

Our fleet is managed by Tsakos Energy Management Limited, or Tsakos Energy Management, an affiliate company owned by our chief
executive officer. Tsakos Energy Management provides us with strategic advisory, financial, accounting and administrative services, while
subcontracting the commercial management of our business to Tsakos Shipping & Trading, S.A. or Tsakos Shipping. In its capacity as
commercial manager, Tsakos Shipping manages vessel purchases and sales and identifies and negotiates charter opportunities for our fleet. Until
June 30, 2010, Tsakos Shipping also provided technical and operational management for the majority of our vessels. Tsakos Energy
Management subcontracts the technical and operational management of our fleet to Tsakos Columbia Shipmanagement S.A., or TCM. TCM was
formed in February 2010 by Tsakos family interests and a German private company, the owner of the ship management company Columbia
Shipmanagement Ltd., or CSM, as a joint-venture ship management company. TCM, which formally commenced operations on July 1, 2010,
now manages the technical and operational activities of all of our vessels apart from the LNG carrier Neo Energy which is technically managed
by a non-affiliated ship manager and the VLCC Millenium which is on bareboat charter. In its capacity as technical manager, TCM manages our
day-to-day vessel operations, including maintenance and repair, crewing and supervising newbuilding construction. Tsakos Shipping continues
to provide commercial management services for our vessels, which include chartering, charterer relations, vessel sale and purchase, and vessel
financing.

S-1
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Our Fleet

As of April 26, 2013, our fleet consisted of the following 48 vessels:

Vessel
Year
Built

Deadweight
Tons

Year
Acquired Charter Type(8)

Expiration of
Charter

Hull Type(1)
(all double  hull)

VLCC
1. Millennium 1998 301,171 1998 bareboat charter September 2013

SUEZMAX
1. Silia T 2002 164,286 2002 time charter March 2015
2. Triathlon(2) 2002 164,445 2002 time charter January 2014
3. Eurochampion 2004 2005 164,608 2005 spot � ice-class 1C
4. Euronike(2) 2005 164,565 2005 time charter September 2014 ice-class 1C
5. Archangel 2006 163,216 2006 time charter March 2014 ice-class 1A
6. Alaska 2006 163,250 2006 time charter September 2014 ice-class 1A
7. Arctic(2) 2007 163,216 2007 time charter August 2015 ice-class 1A
8. Antarctic 2007 163,216 2007 time charter June 2013 ice-class 1A
9. Spyros K(3) 2011 157,740 2011 time charter May 2022
10. Dimitris P(3) 2011 157,648 2011 time charter August 2023

SUEZMAX DP2 SHUTTLE
1. Rio 2016(7) 2013 157,000 2013 time charter April 2028
2. Brasil 2014(7) 2013 157,000 2013 time charter May 2028

AFRAMAX
1. Proteas 2006 117,055 2006 spot � ice-class 1A
2. Promitheas 2006 117,055 2006 spot � ice-class 1A
3. Propontis 2006 117,055 2006 time charter March 2015 ice-class 1A
4. Izumo Princess 2007 105,374 2007 spot � DNA
5. Sakura Princess 2007 105,365 2007 pool � DNA
6. Maria Princess 2008 105,346 2008 spot � DNA
7. Nippon Princess 2008 105,392 2008 time charter June 2014 DNA
8. Ise Princess 2009 105,361 2009 spot � DNA
9. Asahi Princess 2009 105,372 2009 spot � DNA
10. Sapporo Princess 2010 105,354 2010 spot � DNA
11. Uraga Princess 2010 105,344 2010 spot � DNA

PANAMAX
1. Andes(3)(5) 2003 68,439 2003 time charter November 2016
2. Maya(3)(4)(5) 2003 68,439 2003 time charter September 2016
3. Inca(3)(4)(5) 2003 68,439 2003 time charter May 2016
4. Selecao 2008 74,296 2008 time charter August 2014
5. Socrates 2008 74,327 2008 time charter July 2014
6. World Harmony(3)(5) 2009 74,200 2010 time charter April 2016
7. Chantal(3)(5) 2009 74,329 2010 time charter June 2016
8. Selini 2009 74,296 2010 time charter April 2015
9. Salamina 2009 74,251 2010 time charter April 2015

HANDYMAX
1. Artemis 2005 53,039 2006 time charter November 2014 ice-class 1A
2. Afrodite 2005 53,082 2006 spot � ice-class 1A
3. Ariadne(2) 2005 53,021 2006 time charter April 2014 ice-class 1A
4. Aris 2005 53,107 2006 time charter May 2017 ice-class 1A
5. Apollon(2)(6) 2005 53,149 2006 spot � ice-class 1A
6. Ajax 2005 53,095 2006 time charter May 2017 ice-class 1A
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Vessel
Year
Built

Deadweight
Tons

Year
Acquired

Charter
Type(8)

Expiration of
Charter

Hull Type(1)
(all double 

hull)
HANDYSIZE
1. Didimon 2005 37,432 2005 time charter March 2014
2. Arion 2006 37,061 2006 spot � ice-class 1A
3. Delphi 2004 37,432 2006 time charter November 2013
4. Amphitrite 2006 37,061 2006 spot � ice-class 1A
5. Andromeda 2007 37,061 2007 spot � ice-class 1A
6. Aegeas 2007 37,061 2007 time charter October 2013 ice-class 1A
7. Byzantion 2007 37,275 2007 spot � ice-class 1B
8. Bosporos 2007 37,275 2007 spot � ice-class 1B

LNG
1. Neo Energy 2007 85,602 2007 time charter March 2016 Membrane
Total Vessels 48 4,786,911

(1) Ice-class classifications are based on ship resistance in brash ice channels with a minimum speed of 5 knots for the following conditions
ice-1A: 1m brash ice, ice-1B: 0.8m brash ice, ice-1C: 0.6m brash ice. DNA-design: new aframax with shorter length overall allowing
greater flexibility in the Caribbean and the United States.

(2) The charter rate for these vessels is based on a fixed minimum rate for the Company plus different levels of profit sharing above the
minimum rate, determined and settled on a calendar month basis.

(3) These vessels are chartered under fixed and variable hire rates. The variable portion of hire is recognized to the extent the amount becomes
fixed and determinable at the reporting date. Determination is every six months.

(4) 49% of the holding company of these vessels is held by a third party.
(5) Charterers have the option to terminate the charter party after at least 12 months with three months� notice.
(6) This vessel will enter into a new time charter in May 2013.
(7) Newbuilding shuttle tankers Rio 2016 and Brasil 2014 are currently on repositioning voyages from the Korean shipyard to Brazil. En route

the Rio 2016 loaded a spot cargo and Brasil 2014 is also expected to load a spot cargo en route. Expected delivery to the charterer in Brazil
is mid-May for the Rio 2016 and end of May for Brasil 2014 at which time they will commence 15-year time charters.

(8) Certain of the vessels are operating in the spot market under contracts of affreightment.
On March 21, 2011, the Company ordered two suezmax DP2 shuttle tankers from Sungdong Shipbuilding in South Korea. We took delivery of
the first suezmax DP2 tanker, Rio 2016 on March 11, 2013, and the second one, Brasil 2014 on April 23, 2013. In addition, an LNG carrier has
been ordered from Hyundai Heavy Industries (see below). The newbuildings have a double hull design compliant with all classification
requirements and prevailing environmental laws and regulations. Tsakos Shipping has worked closely with the Sungdong shipyard and Hyundai
Heavy Industries in South Korea in the design of the newbuildings and continues to work with the shipyards during the construction period.
TCM provides supervisory personnel present during the construction. A further shuttle tanker had been ordered from Sungdong, but the contract
is being renegotiated with the shuttle tanker being cancelled and two alternative vessels being considered instead. A first installment of $4.5
million had been paid in the first quarter of 2013 and this amount will remain as the first installment of whatever new constructions are decided
upon.

Our newbuildings under construction as of April 26, 2013 consisted of one LNG carrier (Hull 2612) of 86,000 deadweight tons at the Hyundai
Heavy Industries shipyard in South Korea, for a purchase price of $210.4 million, including extra costs agreed as of March 31, 2013. This
contract is currently under renegotiation with regards to size, specifications and delivery time, which is now expected to be in 2016. It is possible
that the contract price will increase as a result. As of April 23, 2013, we have not yet secured bank financing for the LNG carrier under
construction. We expect that our LNG carrier will be equipped with the latest tri-fuel diesel electric propulsion technology.

S-3
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Under the newbuilding contracts, the purchase prices for the ships are subject to deductions for delayed delivery, excessive fuel consumption
and failure to meet specified deadweight tonnage requirements. We make progress payments equal to 30% or 50% of the purchase price of each
vessel during the period of its construction. As of April 26, 2013, we had made progress payments of $35.9 million out of the total purchase
price of approximately $298.4 million (assuming no change to the vessels to be constructed) for these newbuildings. Of the remaining amount
(assuming no change to the vessels to be constructed), a further $59.4 million is contracted to be paid during 2013, although as part of the
renegotiations on both contracts, it is expected that a lesser amount will be paid.

Our Distinguishing Factors

� Modern, high-quality, fleet. We own a fleet of modern, versatile, high-quality tankers that are designed for enhanced safety and low
operating costs. Since inception, we have committed to investments of approximately $3.6 billion, including investments of
approximately $3.0 billion in newbuilding constructions, in order to maintain and improve the quality of our fleet. We believe that
increasingly stringent environmental regulations and heightened concerns about liability for oil pollution have contributed to a
significant demand for our vessels by leading oil companies, oil traders and major government oil entities. TCM, the technical
manager of our fleet, has ISO 14001 environmental certification and ISO 1001 quality certification, based in part upon audits
conducted on our vessels.

� Diversified fleet. Our diversified fleet, which includes VLCC, suezmax, aframax, panamax, handysize and handymax tankers, as
well as one LNG carrier, allows us to better serve our customers� international petroleum product and crude oil transportation needs.
We had also committed a sizable part of our newbuilding and acquisition program, in the past, to ice-class vessels, which are vessels
that can access ice-bound ports depending on certain thickness of ice. We have 21 ice-class vessels. Additionally, we entered the
LNG market with the delivery of our LNG carrier in 2007 and have contracted for the construction of at least one additional LNG
carrier newbuilding. We also entered the shuttle tanker market with our first DP2 suezmax Rio 2016 which was delivered in March
2013 and our second DP2 suezmax Brasil 2014 which was delivered in April 2013.

� Stability throughout industry cycles. Historically, we have employed a high percentage of our fleet on long and medium-term
employment with fixed rates or minimum rates plus profit sharing agreements. We believe this approach has resulted in high
utilization rates for our vessels. At the same time, we maintain flexibility in our chartering policy to allow us to take advantage of
favorable rate trends through spot market employment, pools and contract of affreightment charters with periodic adjustments. Over
the five-year period ended December 31, 2012, our overall average annual fleet utilization rate was 96.9%.

� High-quality, sophisticated clientele. For over 40 years, Tsakos entities have maintained relationships with and achieved acceptance
by national, major and other independent oil companies and refiners. Several of the world�s major oil companies and traders,
including Petrobras, BP, ExxonMobil, FLOPEC, Hyundai Merchant Marine, Dorado, Shell and Stena, are among the regular
customers of Tsakos Energy Navigation, in particular.

� Developing LNG and offshore shuttle tanker platform. We believe we are well positioned to capitalize on rising demand for LNG
sea transport and offshore shuttle tanker transport because of our extensive relationships with existing customers, strong safety track
record and financial flexibility. We already own one LNG carrier and, as a result of the recent deliveries of the Rio 2016 and the
Brasil 2016, own two DP2 suezmax shuttle tankers. We are currently in discussions to construct additional vessels, including at least
one additional LNG carrier.

� Entering offshore sector. With the delivery of two suezmax DP2 shuttle tankers in March and April 2013, which will operate on
long-term charters with one of the largest developers of offshore oil fields,
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we have entered a shipping sector previously dominated by a small number of shipping companies. It is our intention to seek other
opportunities in servicing the offshore oil exploration and production industry, building on the well established relationships with
existing oil major customers which are exploiting the rich deposits of sub-marine oil fields.

� Significant leverage from our relationship with Tsakos Shipping and TCM. We believe the expertise, scale and scope of TCM are
key components in maintaining low operating costs, efficiency, quality and safety. We leverage Tsakos Shipping�s reputation and
longstanding relationships with leading charterers to foster charter renewals. In addition, we believe that TCM has the ability to
spread costs over a larger vessel base than that previously of Tsakos Shipping, thereby capturing even greater economies of scale that
may lead to additional cost savings for us.

Our Business Strategies

� Capitalize on our extensive relationships with energy producers. Our team has managed and operated a substantial number of
product tankers and crude oil carriers since 1970 and has been active in the LNG shipping sector since 2007. We intend to leverage
the long standing and deep relationships we have built with national, major and super major energy producers both to maximize the
employment of our fleet throughout the shipping cycle and to expand our presence in the LNG sector. We believe we are well
positioned to support these energy companies as they execute their growth plans in oil, petroleum products and LNG.

� Focus on the LNG sector. We intend to expand our investment in LNG carriers since we believe that this sector of the shipping
industry currently offers growth opportunities and attractive economic returns and plays to the strength of our long standing
relationships with energy producers. With the growth in world energy requirements, there has been an increasing demand for LNG as
a comparatively safe, efficient and environmentally clean source of energy. This growing demand has led to significant increases in
LNG production, which we believe will drive significant increased demand for LNG transportation, including particularly LNG
carriers.

� Opportunistically expand and modernize our tanker fleet. We will explore potential opportunities in the newbuilding market, either
by placing order or acquiring from first class shipyards already constructed newbuildings, and/or to purchase recently built tankers at
the attractive prices that we believe are currently prevailing. Since we did not contract to purchase newbuildings when tanker prices
were high, we believe that we will be able to modernize and renew our fleet with first class tonnage on attractive terms that will
position us to continue to meet the needs of our customers.

� Seek to expand and diversify our customer base. We intend to cultivate relationships with a number of major energy companies
beyond our current customer base and explore relationships with other leading energy companies, with an aim to supporting their
growth plans and capitalizing on attractive opportunities these plans may offer shipping companies. We believe our operational
expertise and financial strength in combination with our reputation and track record in energy transportation, position us favorably to
capture additional commercial opportunities in the energy sectors of the shipping industry.

� Provide high-quality customer service that acts as a benchmark for the industry. We intend to continue to adhere to the highest
standards with regard to reliability, safety and operational excellence as we execute our growth plans. Maintaining the highest safety
and technical standards will, we believe, give us greater commercial opportunities to service new and existing customers and to
diversify into the LNG sector.

S-5
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� Continue to Manage Our Balance Sheet and Access to Capital. We believe that management of our balance sheet, including
management of cash and capital commitments, will continue to give us financial flexibility. We believe that we have taken advantage
of opportunities at attractive points in the tanker shipping cycle and that we are well-positioned to continue to do so.

Industry Overview

� Crude oil prices declined slightly in 2012 as a result of a continued weak global economic outlook and signals of increased
production from Saudi Arabia, offset by geopolitical tensions and supply disruptions. World oil supply increased 2.7% from 2011,
with a majority of the increase coming from OPEC, as well as increased production from U.S. and Canadian shale oil, tight oil and
from sands reserves. It is expected that demand from China will match, if not outpace, US demand in the near future. In 2013, global
demand is expected to grow modestly, led by non-OECD countries. Overall, the weak global economy as well as supply disruptions,
both limiting demand growth through uncertainty and higher prices, filtered through to imply a reduced increase in trade volumes in
2012.

� 2012 saw fleet growth for VLCC vessels, suezmaxes and aframaxes, MR products and panamaxes. Following the lowest annual
averages in the modern era in all three crude tanker sections in 2011, VLCC rates increased significantly, primarily as a result of
increases in rates for slow steam, while suezmax, aframax and MR product rates remained flat, as a result of oversupply, poor
refinery margins lowering demand for crude by refiners, and declining trade from West Africa.

� Supply is currently estimated to grow in 2013 by 2.1% led by the U.S. and Canada, as South Sudan is expected to
recommence exports and Asian refineries return from maintenance, partially offset by continued decreased exports from
Iran.

For a more detailed discussion of oil and tanker industry dynamics, please see �Item 5. Operating and Financial Review and Prospects-General
Market Overview-World Oil Demand/Supply and Trade� in our Annual Report on Form 20-F incorporated by reference herein from which this
discussion is drawn.

Potential Financing of Fleet Expansion

From time to time and depending upon market conditions, we may consider various capital raising alternatives to finance the strategic growth
and diversification of our fleet. Any such capital raising transactions may be at the Tsakos Energy Navigation Limited or subsidiary level, and
may include the formation of a master limited partnership partly owned by other persons, to which interests in certain vessels in our fleet and
rights to receive related cash flows would be transferred, as well as other capital raising alternatives available to us at that particular time. Please
see �Risk Factors�The terms of the Series B Preferred Shares do not restrict our ability to engage in certain transactions, including spinoffs,
transfers of assets or the formation of a master limited partnership, joint venture or other entity that may involve issuance of interests to
third-parties in a substantial portion of our assets.�

Corporate Information

Our principal offices are located at 367 Syngrou Avenue, 175 64 P. Faliro, Athens, Greece. Our telephone number at this address is 011 30 210
9407710. Our website address is www.tenn.gr. Information contained on or accessible to or from our website does not form part of this
prospectus.
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The Offering

Issuer Tsakos Energy Navigation Limited

Securities Offered 2,000,000 of our 8.00% Series B Cumulative Redeemable Perpetual Preferred Shares (or
2,300,000 of our Series B Preferred Shares if the underwriters exercise their option to
purchase additional shares in full), par value $1.00 per share, liquidation preference
$25.00 per share. For a detailed description of the Series B Preferred Shares, please read
�Description of Series B Preferred Shares.�

Price per share $25.00

Conversion; Exchange and Preemptive Rights The Series B Preferred Shares will not have any conversion or exchange rights or be
subject or entitled to preemptive rights.

Dividends Dividends on Series B Preferred Shares will accrue and be cumulative from the date the
Series B Preferred Shares are originally issued and will be payable on each Dividend
Payment Date (as defined below) when, as and if declared by our board of directors or
any authorized committee thereof out of legally available funds for such purpose.

In the event that four quarterly dividends, whether consecutive or not, payable on Series
B Preferred Shares are in arrears, such event shall constitute a �Dividend Payment Default.�

Dividend Payment Dates January 30, April 30, July 30 and October 30, commencing July 30, 2013 (each, a
�Dividend Payment Date�).

Dividend Rate The dividend rate for the Series B Preferred Shares will be 8.00% per annum per $25.00
of liquidation preference per share (equal to $2.00 per share), subject to increase if (i) we
fail to comply with certain covenants (a �Covenant Default�), (ii) we experience certain
defaults under any of our credit facilities (a �Cross Default�), (iii) four quarterly dividends
payable on the Series B Preferred Shares are in arrears (a �Dividend Payment Default�) or
(iv) the Series B Preferred Shares are not redeemed by us in whole by July 30, 2019 (a
�Failure to Redeem�), the dividend rate payable on the Series B Preferred Shares shall
increase, subject to aggregate maximum rates per annum of 25% prior to July 30, 2018
and 30% thereafter, to a rate that is 1.25 times the dividend rate payable on the Series B
Preferred Shares as of the close of business on the day immediately preceding the
Covenant Default, Cross Default, Divided Payment Default or Failure to Redeem, as
applicable, and on each subsequent Dividend Payment Date, the dividend rate payable
shall increase to a rate that is 1.25 times the dividend rate payable on the Series B
Preferred Shares as in effect as of the close of business on the day immediately preceding
such Dividend Payment Date, until the Covenant Default, Cross Default or Dividend
Payment Default is cured or the Series B Preferred Shares are no longer outstanding.
Please read �Description of Series B Preferred Shares�Dividends.�
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Ranking The Series B Preferred Shares will represent perpetual equity interests in us and, unlike
our indebtedness, will not give rise to a claim for payment of a principal amount at a
particular date. The Series B Preferred Shares will rank:

�senior to our common shares and, if issued, our Series A Junior Participating Preferred
Shares, and to each other class or series of capital stock established after the original
issue date of the Series B Preferred Shares that is not expressly made senior to or on
parity with the Series B Preferred Shares as to the payment of dividends and amounts
payable upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up;

�pari passu with any class or series of capital stock established after the original issue
date of the Series B Preferred Shares that is not expressly subordinated or senior to the
Series B Preferred Shares as to the payment of dividends and amounts payable upon
liquidation, dissolution or winding up; and

�junior to all of our indebtedness and other liabilities with respect to assets available to
satisfy claims against us and each class or series of capital stock expressly made senior
to the Series B Preferred Shares as to the payment of dividends and amounts payable
upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up.

Optional Redemption and Failure to Redeem At anytime on or after July 30, 2018, we may redeem, in whole or in part, the Series B
Preferred Shares at a redemption price of $25.00 per share plus an amount equal to all
accumulated and unpaid dividends thereon to the date of redemption, whether or not
declared. Any such redemption would be effected only out of funds legally available for
such purpose. We must provide not less than 30 days� and not more than 60 days� written
notice of any such redemption.

Our failure to redeem all the Series B Preferred Shares on or prior to July 30, 2019,
whether or not our board of directors has authorized any such redemption and whether or
not such redemption is legally permissible or is prohibited by any agreement to which we
are subject, shall constitute a �Failure to Redeem.�

Voting Rights Holders of the Series B Preferred Shares generally have no voting rights. However, if and
whenever dividends payable on the Series B Preferred Shares are in arrears for six or
more quarterly periods, whether or not consecutive, holders of Series B Preferred Shares
(voting together as a class with all other classes or series of preferred stock upon which
like voting rights have been conferred and are exercisable) will, subject to certain
exceptions, be entitled to elect one additional director to serve on our board of directors
until we pay, or declare and set apart for payment, all cumulative dividends on the Series
B Preferred Shares.

Unless we have received the affirmative vote or consent of the holders of at least
two-thirds of the outstanding Series B Preferred Shares, voting as a single class, we may
not adopt any amendment to
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the Memorandum of Association that adversely alters the preferences, powers or rights of
the Series B Preferred Shares; issue any Parity Securities if the cumulative dividends
payable on outstanding Series B Preferred Shares are in arrears; or create or issue any
Senior Securities.

Covenants and Cross Defaults We will be subject to certain covenants with respect to the Series B Preferred Shares,
including:

(a) Restricting Total Borrowings to less than 75% of Total Assets; and

(b) Maintaining a Net Worth to Preferred Stock Ratio of at least 2.00.

Our failure to comply with clauses (a) or (b) above, if such failure continues unremedied
for 120 days, shall constitute a �Covenant Default.�

A default by us under any Credit Facility (as defined under �Description of Series B
Preferred Shares�Dividends�Increase in Base Dividend Rate Following a Covenant Default,
Cross Default, Dividend Payment Default or Failure to Redeem�) shall constitute a �Cross
Default� if such default is caused by a failure to pay principal of, or interest or premium, if
any, on outstanding indebtedness under any Credit Facility (other than non-recourse
indebtedness of any subsidiary) prior to the expiration of the grace period for payment of
such indebtedness set forth in such Credit Facility (as such Credit Facility may be
amended) and the principal amount of any such indebtedness, together with the principal
amount of any other such indebtedness under which there has been a payment default,
aggregates $25 million or more.

We will also provide certain information to holders of Series B Preferred Shares during
the period of any Cross Default.

For definitions of capitalized terms used in the text above, please read �Description of
Series B Preferred Shares�Certain Covenants�Certain Definitions and Interpretations.�

Fixed Liquidation Price If we liquidate, dissolve or wind-up, holders of the Series B Preferred Shares will have
the right to receive $25.00 per share plus an amount equal to all accumulated and unpaid
dividends thereon to the date of payment, whether or not declared, before any payments
are made to holders of our common shares or other junior securities.

Sinking Fund The Series B Preferred Shares will not be subject to any sinking fund requirements.
Please read �Description of Series B Preferred Shares�No Sinking Fund.�

S-9
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Use of Proceeds We intend to use the net proceeds of the sale of the Series B Preferred Shares, which are
expected to total approximately $47.9 million, assuming no exercise of the underwriters�
option to purchase additional shares. We intend to use the proceeds of the sale of the
Series B Preferred Shares for general corporate purposes, which may include making
vessel acquisitions or investments. Please read �Use of Proceeds.�

Ratings The securities will not be rated by any Nationally Recognized Statistical Rating
Organization.

Listing We intend to file an application to list the Series B Preferred Shares on the New York
Stock Exchange, or NYSE. If the application is approved, trading of the Series B
Preferred Shares on the NYSE is expected to begin within 30 days after the original issue
date of the Series B Preferred Shares. The underwriters have advised us that they intend
to make a market in the Series B Preferred Shares prior to commencement of any trading
on the NYSE. However, the underwriters will have no obligation to do so, and no
assurance can be given that a market for the Series B Preferred Shares will develop prior
to commencement of trading on the NYSE or, if developed, will be maintained.

Tax Considerations We believe that under current U.S. federal income tax law, all or a portion of the
distributions you receive from us will constitute dividends and, if you are an individual
citizen or resident of the United States or a U.S. estate or trust and meet certain holding
period requirements, such dividends are expected to be taxable as �qualified dividend
income� subject to a maximum 20 percent U.S. federal income tax rate. Any portion of
your distribution that is not treated as a dividend will be treated first as a non-taxable
return of capital to the extent of your tax basis in your Series B Preferred Shares and,
thereafter, as capital gain. Please read �Tax Considerations�Material U.S. Federal Income
Tax Considerations.�

Form The Series B Preferred Shares will be issued and maintained in book-entry form
registered in the name of the nominee of The Depository Trust Company, or DTC, except
under limited circumstances.

Settlement Delivery of the Series B Preferred Shares will be made against payment therefor on or
about May 10, 2013.

An investment in our Series B Preferred Shares involves risks. You should consider carefully the factors set forth in the section of this
prospectus entitled �Risk Factors� beginning on page S-14 of this prospectus supplement and on page 3 of the accompanying base prospectus to
determine whether an investment in our Series B Preferred Shares is appropriate for you.

S-10

Edgar Filing: TSAKOS ENERGY NAVIGATION LTD - Form 424B5

Table of Contents 19



Table of Contents

Summary Historical Financial and Operating Data

The following table presents summary consolidated financial and other data of Tsakos Energy Navigation Limited for each of the years in the
five-year period ended December 31, 2012. The table should be read together with �Item 5. Operating and Financial Review and Prospects� in our
Annual Report on Form 20-F for the year ended December 31, 2012 incorporated herein by reference. The summary consolidated financial data
of Tsakos Energy Navigation Limited is a summary of, is derived from and is qualified by reference to, our consolidated financial statements
and notes thereto which have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (�US GAAP�).

Our audited consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, stockholders� equity and cash flows for the years ended December 31,
2012, 2011 and 2010, and the consolidated balance sheets at December 31, 2012 and 2011, together with the notes thereto, are included in �Item
18. Financial Statements� in our Annual Report on Form 20-F for the year ended December 31, 2012 incorporated herein by reference and should
be read in their entirety.

Year ended December 31,
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

(Dollars in thousands, except for share and per share amounts and fleet
data)

Income Statement Data
Voyage revenues $ 393,989 $ 395,162 $ 408,006 $ 444,926 $ 623,040
Expenses
Commissions 12,215 14,290 13,837 16,086 22,997
Voyage expenses 111,797 127,156 85,813 77,224 83,065
Charter hire expense �  �  1,905 �  13,487
Vessel operating expenses(1) 133,251 129,884 126,022 144,586 143,757
Depreciation 94,340 101,050 92,889 94,279 85,462
Amortization of deferred dry-docking costs 4,910 4,878 4,553 7,243 5,281
Management fees 15,887 15,598 14,143 13,273 12,015
General and administrative expenses 4,093 4,292 3,627 4,069 4,626
Management incentive award �  �  425 �  4,750
Stock compensation expense 730 820 1,068 1,087 3,046
Foreign currency losses (gains) 30 458 (378) 730 915
Amortization of deferred gain on sale of vessels �  �  �  �  (634) 
Net gain on sale of vessels 1,879 (5,001) (19,670) (5,122) (34,565) 
Vessel impairment charge 13,567 39,434 3,077 19,066 �  
Operating income (loss) 1,290 (37,697) 80,695 72,405 278,838
Other expenses (income):
Interest and finance costs, net 51,576 53,571 62,283 45,877 82,897
Interest and investment income (1,348) (2,715) (2,626) (3,572) (8,406) 
Other, net 118 397 3 (75) 350
Total other expenses (income), net 50,346 51,253 59,660 42,230 74,841
Net income (loss) (49,056) (88,950) 21,035 30,175 203,997
Less: Net (income) loss attributable to
non-controlling interest 207 546 (1,267) (1,490) (1,066) 
Net income (loss) attributable to Tsakos Energy
Navigation Ltd. $ (49,263) $ (89,496) $ 19,768 $ 28,685 $ 202,931
Per Share Data
Earnings (loss) per share, basic $ (0.92) $ (1.94) $ 0.50 $ 0.78 $ 5.40
Earnings (loss) per share, diluted $ (0.92) $ (1.94) $ 0.50 $ 0.77 $ 5.33
Weighted average number of shares, basic 53,301,039 46,118,534 39,235,601 36,940,198 37,552,848
Weighted average number of shares, diluted 53,301,039 46,118,534 39,601,678 37,200,187 38,047,134
Dividends per common share, paid $ 0.50 $ 0.60 $ 0.60 $ 1.15 $ 1.80
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Year ended December 31,
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

(Dollars in thousands, except for share and per share amounts and fleet
data)

Cash Flow Data
Net cash provided by operating activities 60,862 45,587 83,327 117,161 274,141
Net cash used in investing activities (42,985) (69,187) (240,115) (75,568) (164,637) 
Net cash provided by /(used in) financing
activities (49,288) (77,329) 137,244 (57,581) 21,218
Balance Sheet Data (at year end)
Cash and cash equivalents $ 144,297 $ 175,708 $ 276,637 $ 296,181 $ 312,169
Cash, restricted 16,192 5,984 6,291 6,818 7,581
Investments 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000
Advances for vessels under construction 119,484 37,636 81,882 49,213 53,715
Vessels, net book value 2,088,358 2,194,360 2,235,065 2,009,965 2,155,489
Total assets 2,450,884 2,535,337 2,702,260 2,549,720 2,602,317
Long-term debt, including current portion 1,442,427 1,515,663 1,562,467 1,502,574 1,513,629
Total stockholders� equity 926,840 919,158 1,019,930 914,327 915,115
Fleet Data
Average number of vessels(2) 47.9 47.8 46.1 46.6 44.1
Number of vessels (at end of period)(2) 46.0 48.0 48.0 47.0 46.0
Average age of fleet (in years)(3) 6.5 7.0 6.8 6.8 6.1
Earnings capacity days(4) 17,544 17,431 16,836 17,021 16,143
Off-hire days(5) 889 502 400 390 431
Net earnings days(6) 16,655 16,929 16,436 16,631 15,712
Percentage utilization(7) 94.9% 97.1% 97.6% 97.7% 97.3% 
Average TCE per vessel per day(8) $ 17,163 $ 16,047 $ 19,825 $ 22,329 $ 34,600
Vessel operating expenses per ship per day(9) $ 7,755 $ 7,606 $ 7,647 $ 8,677 $ 9,450
Vessel overhead burden per ship per day(10) $ 1,180 $ 1,188 $ 1,144 $ 1,083 $ 1,514

(1) Vessel operating expenses are costs that vessel owners typically bear, including crew wages and expenses, vessel supplies and spares,
insurance, tonnage tax, routine repairs and maintenance, quality and safety costs and other direct operating costs.

(2) Includes chartered vessels.
(3) The average age of our fleet is the age of each vessel in each year from its delivery from the builder, weighted by the vessel�s deadweight

tonnage (�dwt�) in proportion to the total dwt of the fleet for each respective year.
(4) Earnings capacity days are the total number of days in a given period that we own or control vessels.
(5) Off-hire days are days related to repairs, dry-dockings and special surveys, vessel upgrades and initial positioning after delivery of new

vessels. In 2012, excluding La Prudencia and La Madrina, which were unemployed during most of the year being held for sale, off-hire
days for the rest of the fleet were 337.

(6) Net earnings days are the total number of days in any given period that we own vessels less the total number of off-hire days for that period.
(7) Percentage utilization represents the percentage of earnings capacity days that the vessels were actually employed, i.e., earnings capacity

days less off-hire days. In 2012, excluding La Prudencia and La Madrina, which were unemployed during most of the year being held for
sale, percentage utilization was 98%.

(8) The shipping industry uses time charter equivalent, or TCE, to calculate revenues per vessel in dollars per day for vessels on voyage
charters. The industry does this because it does not commonly express charter rates for vessels on voyage charters in dollars per day. TCE
allows vessel operators to compare the revenues of vessels that are on voyage charters with those on time charters. TCE is a non-GAAP
measure. For vessels on voyage charters, we calculate TCE by taking revenues earned on the voyage and deducting the voyage costs and
dividing by the actual number of voyage days. For vessels on bareboat charter, for which we do not incur either voyage or operation costs,
we calculate TCE by taking revenues earned on the charter and adding a representative amount for vessel operating expenses. TCE differs
from average daily revenue earned in that TCE is based on revenues before commissions and does not take into account off-hire days.
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Derivation of time charter equivalent per day (amounts in thousands except for days and per day amounts):

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Voyage revenues $ 393,989 $ 395,162 $ 408,006 $ 444,926 $ 623,040
Less: Voyage expenses (111,797) (127,156) (85,813) (77,224) (83,065) 
Add: Representative operating expenses for
bareboat charter ($10,000 daily) 3,660 3,650 3,650 3,650 3,660

Time charter equivalent revenues 285,852 271,656 325,843 371,352 543,635

Net earnings days 16,655 16,929 16,436 16,631 15,712
Average TCE per vessel per day $ 17,163 $ 16,047 $ 19,825 $ 22,329 $ 34,600

(9) Vessel operating expenses per ship per day represents vessel operating expenses divided by the earnings capacity days of vessels incurring
operating expenses. Earnings capacity days of vessels on bareboat or chartered-in have been excluded.

(10)Vessel overhead burden per ship per day is the total of management fees, management incentive awards, stock compensation expense and
general and administrative expenses divided by the total number of earnings capacity days.

Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges and Preference Dividends

The following table sets forth our ratio of earnings to fixed charges and preference dividends for the periods presented:

Year ended December 31,
2012(2) 2011(2) 2010 2009 2008

Ratio of earnings to fixed charges and preference dividends(1) � �  1.4x 1.5x 3.8x

(1) For purposes of calculating the ratios of earnings to fixed charges and preference dividends:

� �earnings� consist of net income (loss) before minority interest plus interest expensed and amortization of capitalized expenses relating
to indebtedness, the interest portion of charter hire expense, amortization of capitalized interest and distributed income of equity
investees;

� �fixed charges� represent interest expensed and capitalized, the interest portion of charter hire expense, and amortization of capitalized
expenses relating to indebtedness; and

� �preference dividends� refers to the amount of net income (loss) that is required to pay the cash dividends on outstanding preference
securities and is computed as the amount of (x) the dividend divided by (y) the result of 1 minus the effective applicable income tax
rate. We did not have any preferred shares outstanding as of April 26, 2013 or during any of the periods covered by the above table.

(2) The ratio of earnings to fixed charges and preference dividends for this period was less than 1.0x. The deficiency in earnings to fixed
charges and preference dividends for the year ended December 31, 2011 and 2012 was approximately $90.1 million and $49.5 million,
respectively.
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RISK FACTORS

Any investment in our Series B Preferred Shares involves a high degree of risk. You should consider carefully the information contained in this
prospectus supplement, the accompanying base prospectus and the documents incorporated by reference in this document before making an
investment in our Series B Preferred Shares. If any of these risks were to occur, our business, financial condition, operating results or ability to
pay dividends could be harmed, which may reduce our ability to pay dividends or redeem, and lower the trading price of, our Series B Preferred
Shares. You may lose all or part of your investment.

Risks Related To Our Industry

The charter markets for crude oil carriers and product tankers have deteriorated significantly since the summer of 2008, which could affect
our future revenues, earnings and profitability.

After reaching highs during the summer of 2008, charter rates for crude oil carriers and product tankers fell dramatically thereafter. While the
rates occasionally improved in certain sectors for a limited period between 2009 and 2012, generally they remained significantly below the
levels that contributed to our increasing revenues and profitability through 2008. A further significant decline occurred during 2011 and 2012 to
low levels, and, apart from possible temporary seasonal or regional rate spikes, charter rates are likely to remain at historically low levels
throughout 2013.

As of April 26, 2013, 16 of our vessels were employed under spot charters that are scheduled to expire in May 2013, and 31 of our vessels were
employed on time charters or, in one case, a bareboat charter, which, if not extended, are scheduled to expire during the period between June
2013 and June 2028. In addition, five of our vessels have profit sharing provisions in their time charters that are based upon prevailing market
rates and one of our vessels is employed in a pool arrangement at variable rates. If the current low rates in the charter market continue for any
significant period in the remainder of 2013, it will affect the charter revenue we will receive from these vessels, which could have an adverse
effect on our revenues, profitability and cash flows. The decline in prevailing charter rates also affects the value of our vessels, which follows
the trends of charter rates and earnings on our charters.

Disruptions in world financial markets and the resulting governmental action in the United States and in other parts of the world could have
a further material adverse impact on our results of operations, financial condition, cash flows and share price.

Global financial markets and economic conditions have been severely disrupted and volatile in recent years and remain subject to significant
vulnerabilities, such as the deterioration of fiscal balances and the rapid accumulation of public debt, continued deleveraging in the banking
sector and a limited supply of credit. While there are some indications that the global economy is improving, concerns over debt levels of certain
other European Union member states, and poor liquidity of European banks and attempts to find appropriate solutions are expected to lead to
slow growth and possible recession in most of Europe in 2013. We cannot provide any assurance that the global recession will not return and
tight credit markets will not continue or become more severe.

We face risks attendant to changes in economic environments, changes in interest rates, and instability in the banking, commodities and
securities markets around the world, among other geopolitical factors. Major market disruptions and the current adverse changes in market
conditions and regulatory climate in the United States and worldwide may adversely affect our business or impair our ability to borrow amounts
under our credit facilities or any future financial arrangements. However, these recent and developing economic, geopolitical and governmental
factors, together with the concurrent decline in charter rates and vessel values, could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations,
financial condition, cash flows or share price.
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The tanker industry is highly dependent upon the crude oil and petroleum products industries.

The employment of our vessels is driven by the availability of and demand for crude oil and petroleum products, the availability of modern
tanker capacity and the scrapping, conversion or loss of older vessels. Historically, the world oil and petroleum markets have been volatile and
cyclical as a result of the many conditions and events that affect the supply, price, production and transport of oil, including:

� increases and decreases in the demand for crude oil and petroleum products;

� availability of crude oil and petroleum products;

� demand for crude oil and petroleum product substitutes, such as natural gas, coal, hydroelectric power and other alternate sources of
energy that may, among other things, be affected by environmental regulation;

� actions taken by OPEC and major oil producers and refiners;

� political turmoil in or around oil producing nations;

� global and regional political and economic conditions;

� developments in international trade;

� international trade sanctions;

� environmental factors;

� natural catastrophes;

� terrorist acts;

� weather; and

� changes in seaborne and other transportation patterns.
Despite turbulence in the world economy in recent years, there has been some rebound in worldwide demand for oil and oil products, which
industry observers forecast will continue. In the event that this rebound falters, the production of and demand for crude oil and petroleum
products will again encounter pressure which could lead to a decrease in shipments of these products and consequently this would have an
adverse impact on the employment of our vessels and the charter rates that they command. In particular, the charter rates that we earn from our
vessels employed on spot charters, under pool arrangements and contracts of affreightment, and on time-charters with profit-share may remain at
low levels for a prolonged period of time or further decline.
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Charter hire rates are cyclical and volatile.

The crude oil and petroleum products shipping industry is cyclical with attendant volatility in charter hire rates and profitability. After reaching
highs in mid-2008, charter hire rates for oil product carriers have remained poor with some short periods of relative respite. In addition, hire and
spot rates for large crude carriers remained low since the middle of 2010, often resulting in rates well below break-even. The charter rates for 25
of our vessels are on variable basis or include a variable element and the time charters (whether fixed or partly variable) for two of our vessels
may expire in September and October 2013, respectively. As a result, we will be exposed to changes in the charter rates which could affect our
earnings and the value of our vessels at any given time.

Because the factors affecting the supply and demand for vessels are outside of our control and are unpredictable, the nature, timing, direction
and degree of changes in industry conditions are also unpredictable.

Our operating results are subject to seasonal fluctuations.

Our tankers operate in markets that have historically exhibited seasonal variations in tanker demand, which may result in variability in our
results of operations on a quarter-by-quarter basis. Tanker markets are typically
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stronger in the winter months as a result of increased oil consumption in the northern hemisphere, but weaker in the summer months as a result
of lower oil consumption in the northern hemisphere and refinery maintenance. As a result, revenues generated by the tankers in our fleet have
historically been weaker during the fiscal quarters ended June 30 and September 30. However, there may be periods in the northern hemisphere,
such as in the winter of 2011/2012, when the expected seasonal strength does not materialize to the extent required to support sustainable
profitable rates due to tanker overcapacity.

An increase in the supply of vessels without an increase in demand for such vessels could cause charter rates to decline, which could have a
material adverse effect on our revenues and profitability.

Historically, the marine transportation industry has been cyclical. The profitability and asset values of companies in the industry have fluctuated
based on certain factors, including changes in the supply and demand of vessels. The supply of vessels generally increases with deliveries of new
vessels and decreases with the scrapping of older vessels and/or the removal of vessels from the competitive fleet either for storage purposes or
for utilization in offshore projects. The newbuilding order book equaled approximately 11% of the existing world tanker fleet as of March 31,
2013 and, although the order book has substantially declined over the past eighteen months as vessels have been delivered, no assurance can be
given that the order book will not begin to increase again in proportion to the existing fleet. If supply increases and demand does not match that
increase, the charter rates for our vessels could decline significantly. In addition, any decline of trade on specific long-haul trade routes will
effectively increase available capacity with a detrimental impact on rates. Continued weakness or a further decline in charter rates could have a
material adverse effect on our revenues and profitability.

The global tanker industry is highly competitive.

We operate our fleet in a highly competitive market. Our competitors include owners of suezmax, aframax, panamax, handymax and handysize
tankers, as well as owners in the shuttle tanker and LNG markets, who are other independent tanker companies, as well as national and
independent oil companies, some of whom have greater financial strength and capital resources than we do. Competition in the tanker industry is
intense and depends on price, location, size, age, condition, and the acceptability of the available tankers and their operators to potential
charterers.

Acts of piracy on ocean-going vessels, although recently declining in frequency, could still adversely affect our business.

Since 2009, the frequency of pirate attacks on seagoing vessels has remained high, particularly in the western part of the Indian Ocean, despite a
recent decline, and off the west coast of Africa. If piracy attacks result in regions in which our vessels are deployed being characterized by
insurers as �war risk� zones, as the Gulf of Aden has been, or Joint War Committee (JWC) �war and strikes� listed areas, premiums payable for such
insurance coverage could increase significantly and such insurance coverage may be more difficult to obtain. Crew costs, including those due to
employing onboard security guards, could increase in such circumstances. In addition, while we believe the charterer remains liable for charter
payments when a vessel is seized by pirates, the charterer may dispute this and withhold charter hire until the vessel is released. A charterer may
also claim that a vessel seized by pirates was not �on-hire� for a certain number of days and it is therefore entitled to cancel the charter party, a
claim that we would dispute. We may not be adequately insured to cover losses from these incidents, which could have a material adverse effect
on us. In addition, hijacking as a result of an act of piracy against our vessels, or an increase in cost, or unavailability of insurance for our
vessels, could have a material adverse impact on our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

Terrorist attacks, international hostilities and economic and trade sanctions can affect the tanker industry, which could adversely affect our
business.

An attack like that of September 11, 2001 in the United States, longer-lasting wars or international hostilities, such as in Afghanistan, Iraq, Syria
and Libya, or continued turmoil and hostilities in the Middle East
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or North Africa or potential hostilities between North and South Korea or between China and Japan could damage the world economy and
adversely affect the availability of and demand for crude oil and petroleum products and negatively affect our investment and our customers�
investment decisions over an extended period of time. In addition, sanctions against oil exporting countries such as Iran, Sudan and Syria may
also impact the availability of crude oil which would increase the availability of tankers thereby negatively impacting charter rates. We conduct
our vessel operations internationally and despite undertaking various security measures, our vessels may become subject to terrorist acts and
other acts of hostility like piracy, either at port or at sea. Such actions could adversely impact our overall business, financial condition and
operations. In addition, terrorist acts and regional hostilities around the world in recent years have led to increases in our insurance premium
rates and the implementation of special �war risk� premiums for certain trading routes.

Our charterers may direct one of our vessels to call on ports located in countries that are subject to restrictions imposed by the U.S.
government, which could negatively affect the trading price of our common shares.

On charterers� instructions, and contrary to our charter terms, our vessels may call on ports located in countries subject to sanctions and
embargoes imposed by the U.S. government, the UN or the EU and countries identified by the U.S. government, the UN or the EU as state
sponsors of terrorism. The U.S., UN- and EU- sanctions and embargo laws and regulations vary in their application, as they do not all apply to
the same covered persons or proscribe the same activities, and such sanctions and embargo laws and regulations may be amended or
strengthened over time. In 2010, the United States enacted the Comprehensive Iran Sanctions Accountability and Divestment Act (�CISADA�),
which expanded the scope of the Iran Sanctions Act of 1996. Among other things, CISADA expands the application of the prohibitions to
non-U.S. companies, such as our company, and introduces limits on the ability of companies and persons to do business or trade with Iran when
such activities relate to the investment, supply or export of refined petroleum or petroleum products. In addition, in October 2012, President
Obama issued an executive order implementing the Iran Threat Reduction and Syria Human Rights Act of 2012 (the �ITRA�) which extends the
application of all U.S. laws and regulations relating to Iran to non-U.S. companies controlled by U.S. companies or persons as if they were
themselves U.S. companies or persons, expands categories of sanctionable activities, adds additional forms of potential sanctions and imposes
certain related reporting obligations with respect to activities of SEC registrants and their affiliates. The ITRA also includes a provision
requiring the President of the United States to impose five or more sanctions from Section 6(a) of the Iran Sanctions Act, as amended, on a
person the President determines is a controlling beneficial owner of, or otherwise owns, operates or controls or insures a vessel that was used to
transport crude oil from Iran to another country and (1) if the person is a controlling beneficial owner of the vessel, the person had actual
knowledge the vessel was so used or (2) if the person otherwise owns, operates, controls, or insures the vessel, the person knew or should have
known the vessel was so used. Such a person could be subject to a variety of sanctions, including exclusion from U.S. capital markets, exclusion
from financial transactions subject to U.S. jurisdiction, and exclusion of that person�s vessels from U.S. ports for up to two years. Finally, in
January 2013, the U.S. enacted the Iran Freedom and Counter-Proliferation Act of 2012 (the �IFCPA�) which expanded the scope of U.S.
sanctions on any person that is part of Iran�s energy, shipping or shipbuilding sector and operators of ports in Iran, and imposes penalties on any
person who facilitates or otherwise knowingly provides significant financial, material or other support to these entities.

Although we believe that we are in compliance with all applicable sanctions and embargo laws and regulations, and intend to maintain such
compliance, there can be no assurance that we will be in compliance in the future, particularly as the scope of certain laws may be unclear and
may be subject to changing interpretations. Any such violation could result in fines or other penalties and could result in some investors
deciding, or being required, to divest their interest, or not to invest, in the Company and negatively affect our reputation and investor perception
of the value of our common stock.
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Taking advantage of attractive opportunities in pursuit of our growth strategy may result in financial or commercial difficulties.

A key strategy of management is to continue to renew and grow the fleet by pursuing the acquisition of additional vessels or fleets or companies
that are complementary to our existing operations. If we seek to expand through acquisitions, we face numerous challenges, including:

� difficulties in raising the required capital;

� depletion of existing cash resources greater than anticipated;

� assumption of potentially unknown material liabilities or contingent liabilities of acquired companies; and

� competition from other potential acquirers, some of which have greater financial resources.
We cannot assure you that we will be able to integrate successfully the operations, personnel, services or vessels that we might acquire in the
future, and our failure to do so could adversely affect our profitability.

We are subject to regulation and liability under environmental, health and safety laws that could require significant expenditures and affect
our cash flows and net income.

Our business and the operation of our vessels are subject to extensive international, national and local environmental and health and safety laws
and regulations in the jurisdictions in which our vessels operate, as well as in the country or countries of their registration. In addition, major oil
companies chartering our vessels impose, from time to time, their own environmental and health and safety requirements. We have incurred
significant expenses in order to comply with these regulations and requirements, including the costs of ship modifications and changes in
operating procedures, additional maintenance and inspection requirements, contingency arrangements for potential spills, insurance coverage
and full implementation of the new security-on-vessels requirements.

Because environmental regulations may become stricter, future regulations may limit our ability to do business, increase our operating costs
and/or force the early retirement of our vessels, all of which could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of
operations.

International, national and local laws imposing liability for oil spills are also becoming increasingly stringent. Some impose joint, several, and in
some cases, unlimited liability on owners, operators and charterers regardless of fault. We could be held liable as an owner, operator or charterer
under these laws. In addition, under certain circumstances, we could also be held accountable under these laws for the acts or omissions of
Tsakos Shipping, TCM or Tsakos Energy Management, companies that provide technical and commercial management services for our vessels
and us, or others in the management or operation of our vessels. Although we currently maintain, and plan to continue to maintain, for each of
our vessels pollution liability coverage in the amount of $1 billion per incident (the maximum amount available), liability for a catastrophic spill
could exceed the insurance coverage we have available, and result in our having to liquidate assets to pay claims. In addition, we may be
required to contribute to funds established by regulatory authorities for the compensation of oil pollution damage or provide financial assurances
for oil spill liability to regulatory authorities.

Maritime disasters and other operational risks may adversely impact our reputation, financial condition and results of operations.

The operation of ocean-going vessels has an inherent risk of maritime disaster and/or accident, environmental mishaps, cargo and property
losses or damage and business interruptions caused by, among others:

� mechanical failure;
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� labor strikes;

� adverse weather conditions;

� vessel off hire periods;

� regulatory delays; and

� political action, civil conflicts, terrorism and piracy in countries or international waters where vessel operations are conducted,
vessels are registered or from which spare parts and provisions are sourced and purchased.

Any of these circumstances could adversely affect our operations, result in loss of revenues or increased costs and adversely affect our
profitability and our ability to perform our charters.

Our vessels could be arrested at the request of third parties.

Under general maritime law in many jurisdictions, crew members, tort claimants, vessel mortgagees, suppliers of goods and services and other
claimants may lien a vessel for unsatisfied debts, claims or damages. In many jurisdictions a mackground-color:#cceeff; padding-left:3pt;
padding-right:3pt; vertical-align:middle; width:3pt">

Net income (loss)

$

249,921 

$

(24,818)

Add (deduct) adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to cash flows
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from operating activities

Depreciation, amortization and accretion

450,035 

465,042 

Bad debts expense

78,370 
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74,357 

Stock-based compensation expense

18,161 

16,502 

Deferred income taxes, net

(20,075)

(14,124)

Equity in earnings of unconsolidated entities
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(109,729)

(106,166)

Distributions from unconsolidated entities

45,035 

74,853 

(Gain) loss on asset disposals, net

12,268 

16,774 

(Gain) loss on sale of business and other exit costs, net
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(113,825)

(27,694)

(Gain) loss on license sales and exchanges, net

(146,884)

(91,446)

Noncash interest expense

1,206 

845 
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Other operating activities

(391)

66 

Changes in assets and liabilities from operations

Accounts receivable

(54,437)

73,741 

Equipment installment plans receivable
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(95,799)

(131,520)

Inventory

90,811 

53,367 

Accounts payable

116,740 

21,677 
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Customer deposits and deferred revenues

(51,026)

28,486 

Accrued taxes

161,237 

(18,453)

Accrued interest

10,814 

9,140 
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Other assets and liabilities

(86,977)

(89,998)

555,455 

330,631 

Cash flows from investing activities
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Cash used for additions to property, plant and equipment

(406,596)

(424,774)

Cash paid for acquisitions and licenses

(285,656)

(37,978)

Cash received from divestitures and exchanges

314,352 

143,801 
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Cash received for investments

– 

10,000 

Other investing activities

990 

804 

(376,910)

(308,147)
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Cash flows from financing activities

Issuance of long-term debt

225,000 

– 

Common shares reissued for benefit plans, net of tax payments

(868)

1,150 
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Common shares repurchased

(4,070)

(14,698)

Payment of debt issuance costs

(3,080)

(448)

Acquisition of assets in common control transaction

(2,437)

(76,298)

Distributions to noncontrolling interests

(6,097)
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(439)

Other financing activities

(1,740)

(18)

206,708 

(90,751)
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Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

385,253 

(68,267)

Cash and cash equivalents

Beginning of period

211,513 
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342,065 

End of period

$

596,766 

$

273,798 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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United States Cellular Corporation

Consolidated Balance Sheet — Assets

 (Unaudited)

September
30,

December
31,

(Dollars in
thousands) 2015 2014

Current assets
Cash and cash
equivalents $596,766 $211,513 

Accounts
receivable

Customers
and agents,
less
allowances
of $41,364
and
$37,654,
respectively

561,676 466,048 

Roaming 27,419 23,865 
Affiliated 516 994 
Other, less
allowances
of $741 and
$859,
respectively

39,185 66,051 

Inventory, net 176,259 267,068 
Prepaid expenses 88,041 59,744 
Net deferred
income tax asset 82,719 93,058 

Other current
assets 18,730 90,834 

1,591,311 1,279,175 

Assets held for
sale – 107,055 
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Investments
Licenses 1,834,061 1,443,438 
Goodwill 369,596 370,151 
Investments in
unconsolidated
entities

347,710 283,014 

2,551,367 2,096,603 
Property, plant and
equipment
In service and
under
construction

7,511,997 7,458,740 

Less:
Accumulated
depreciation

4,903,559 4,730,523 

2,608,438 2,728,217 

Other assets and
deferred charges 187,268 276,218 

Total assets $6,938,384 $6,487,268 

The accompanying notes are an integral part
of these consolidated financial statements.
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United States Cellular Corporation

Consolidated Balance Sheet — Liabilities and Equity

 (Unaudited)

September
30,

December
31,

(Dollars and shares in thousands) 2015 2014
Current liabilities
Current portion of long-term debt $8,501 $46 
Accounts payable
Affiliated 7,874 9,774 
Trade 362,268 306,845 
Customer deposits and deferred revenues 236,568 287,562 
Accrued taxes 121,177 36,652 
Accrued compensation 57,547 66,162 
Other current liabilities 92,617 149,853 

886,552 856,894 

Liabilities held for sale – 20,934 

Deferred liabilities and credits
Net deferred income tax liability 828,563 859,867 
Other deferred liabilities and credits 287,873 284,002 

Long-term debt 1,368,656 1,151,819 

Commitments and contingencies – – 

Noncontrolling interests with redemption features 910 1,150 

Equity
U.S. Cellular shareholders’ equity
Series A Common and Common Shares
Authorized 190,000 shares (50,000 Series A Common and 140,000 Common Shares)
Issued 88,074 shares (33,006 Series A Common and 55,068 Common Shares)
Outstanding 84,288 shares (33,006 Series A Common and 51,282 Common Shares) and
84,080 shares (33,006 Series A Common and 51,074 Common Shares), respectively
Par Value ($1 per share) ($33,006 Series A Common and $55,068 Common Shares) 88,074 88,074 
Additional paid-in capital 1,490,651 1,472,558 
Treasury shares, at cost, 3,786 and 3,994 Common Shares, respectively (159,705) (169,139)
Retained earnings 2,135,145 1,910,498 
Total U.S. Cellular shareholders' equity 3,554,165 3,301,991 
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Noncontrolling interests 11,665 10,611 

Total equity 3,565,830 3,312,602 

Total liabilities and equity $6,938,384 $6,487,268 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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United States Cellular Corporation

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

(Unaudited)

U.S. Cellular Shareholders
Series A Total U.S.
Common
and Cellular

Common Additional Treasury Retained shareholders' Noncontrolling
(Dollars
in
thousands)

shares paid-in
capital shares earnings equity interests Total equity

Balance,
December
31,
2014

$88,074 $1,472,558 $(169,139) $1,910,498 $3,301,991 $10,611 $3,312,602 

Add
(Deduct)
Net
income
attributable
to
U.S.
Cellular
shareholders

– – – 243,010 243,010 – 243,010 

Net
income
attributable
to
noncontrolling
interests

classified
as
equity

– – – – – 1,491 1,491 

Repurchase
of
Common
shares

– – (5,362) – (5,362) – (5,362)

– 186 14,796 (15,926) (944) – (944)
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Incentive
and
compensation
plans
Stock-based
compensation
awards

– 17,472 – – 17,472 – 17,472 

Tax
windfall
(shortfall)
from
stock
awards

– (445) – – (445) – (445)

Distributions
to
noncontrolling
interests

– – – – – (437) (437)

Acquisition
of
assets
in
common
control
transaction

– 885 – (2,437) (1,552) – (1,552)

Adjust
investment
in
subsidiaries
for
noncontrolling

interest
purchases

– (5) – – (5) – (5)

Balance,
September
30,
2015

$88,074 $1,490,651 $(159,705) $2,135,145 $3,554,165 $11,665 $3,565,830 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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United States Cellular Corporation

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

(Unaudited)

U.S. Cellular Shareholders
Series A Total U.S.
Common
and Cellular

Common Additional Treasury Retained shareholders' Noncontrolling
(Dollars
in
thousands)

shares paid-in
capital shares earnings equity interests Total equity

Balance,
December
31,
2013

$88,074 $1,424,729 $(164,692) $2,043,095 $3,391,206 $18,391 $3,409,597 

Add
(Deduct)
Net
loss
attributable
to
U.S.
Cellular
shareholders

– – – (21,472) (21,472) – (21,472)

Net
loss
attributable
to
noncontrolling
interests

classified
as
equity

– – – – – (3,738) (3,738)

Repurchase
of
Common
shares

– – (15,124) – (15,124) – (15,124)

Incentive
and
compensation
plans

– – 12,755 (11,715) 1,040 – 1,040 
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Stock-based
compensation
awards

– 15,474 – – 15,474 – 15,474 

Tax
windfall
(shortfall)
from
stock
awards

– (563) – – (563) – (563)

Distributions
to
noncontrolling
interests

– – – – – (517) (517)

Acquisition
of
assets
in
common
control
transaction

– 29,141 – (76,267) (47,126) – (47,126)

Balance,
September
30,
2014

$88,074 $1,468,781 $(167,061) $1,933,641 $3,323,435 $14,136 $3,337,571 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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United States Cellular Corporation

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1.    Basis of Presentation

United States Cellular Corporation (“U.S. Cellular”), a Delaware corporation, is an 84%-owned subsidiary of Telephone
and Data Systems, Inc. (“TDS”).

The accounting policies of U.S. Cellular conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America (“GAAP”) as set forth in the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Accounting Standards
Codification (“ASC”). The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of U.S. Cellular, subsidiaries in which
it has a controlling financial interest, general partnerships in which U.S. Cellular has a majority partnership interest
and certain entities in which U.S. Cellular has a variable interest that require consolidation under GAAP.  All material
intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated.  Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to
conform to the 2015 presentation.

The unaudited consolidated financial statements included herein have been prepared by U.S. Cellular pursuant to the
rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”). Certain information and disclosures
normally included in financial statements prepared in accordance with GAAP have been condensed or omitted
pursuant to such rules and regulations. However, U.S. Cellular believes that the disclosures included herein are
adequate to make the information presented not misleading.  These unaudited consolidated financial statements should
be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and the notes thereto included in U.S. Cellular’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K (“Form 10-K”) for the year ended December 31, 2014.

The accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements contain all adjustments (consisting of normal
recurring items, unless otherwise disclosed) necessary for a fair statement of the financial position as of September 30,
2015 and December 31, 2014, the results of operations for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015 and
2014, and cash flows and changes in equity for the nine months ended September 30, 2015 and 2014. The
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income was not included because comprehensive income for the three and
nine months ended September 30, 2015 and 2014 equaled net income for these periods.  These results are not
necessarily indicative of the results to be expected for the full year.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(“ASU 2014-09”).  ASU 2014-09 outlines a single comprehensive model to use in accounting for revenue arising from
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contracts with customers.  In August 2015, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 2015-14, Revenue from
Contracts with Customers: Deferral of the Effective Date, requiring the adoption of ASU 2014-09 on January 1, 2018. 
Early adoption as of January 1, 2017 is permitted; however, U.S. Cellular does not intend to adopt early.  U.S. Cellular
is evaluating the effects that adoption of ASU 2014-09 will have on its financial position, results of operations and
disclosures.

In August 2014, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 2014-15, Disclosure of Uncertainties about an Entity’s
Ability to Continue as a Going Concern (“ASU 2014-15”).  ASU 2014-15 requires U.S. Cellular to assess its ability to
continue as a going concern each interim and annual reporting period and provide certain disclosures if there is
substantial doubt about the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern, including management’s plan to alleviate the
substantial doubt.  U.S. Cellular is required to adopt the provisions of ASU 2014-15 for the annual period ending
December 31, 2016, but early adoption is permitted.  The adoption of ASU 2014-15 will not impact U.S. Cellular’s
financial position or results of operations but may impact future disclosures.

In February 2015, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 2015-02, Consolidation: Amendments to the
Consolidation Analysis (“ASU 2015-02”).  ASU 2015-02 simplifies consolidation accounting by reducing the number of
consolidation models. Additionally, ASU 2015-02 changes certain criteria for identifying variable interest entities. 
U.S. Cellular is required to adopt the provisions of ASU 2015-02 effective January 1, 2016.  Early adoption is
permitted.  U.S. Cellular expects that certain consolidated subsidiaries that are not defined as variable interest entities
under current accounting guidance will be defined as variable interest entities under the provisions of ASU 2015-02. 
However, U.S. Cellular does not expect the adoption of ASU 2015-02 to change the group of entities which U.S.
Cellular is required to consolidate in its financial statements.  Accordingly, U.S. Cellular does not expect the adoption
of ASU 2015-02 to impact its financial position or results of operations.  However, additional disclosures are
expected.
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In April 2015, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 2015-03, Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance
Costs (“ASU 2015-03”), which requires certain debt issuance costs to be presented in the balance sheet as an offset to
the related debt obligation.  U.S. Cellular is required to apply the provisions of this update effective January 1, 2016
on a retrospective basis. Early adoption is permitted.  In August 2015, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update
2015-15, Presentation and Subsequent Measurement of Debt Issuance Costs Associated with Line-of-Credit
Arrangements, excluding debt issuance costs related to line-of-credit arrangements from the scope of ASU 2015-03. 
As of September 30, 2015, U.S. Cellular had $27.2 million in debt issuance costs classified as Other assets and
deferred charges that, upon adoption of ASU 2015-03, would be reclassified as an offset to Long-term debt. 

In July 2015, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 2015-11, Inventory: Simplifying the Measurement of
Inventory (“ASU 2015-11”), which requires inventory to be measured at the lower of cost or net realizable value.  U.S.
Cellular is required to adopt ASU 2015-11 on January 1, 2017.  Early adoption is permitted.  U.S. Cellular is
evaluating the effects that adoption of ASU 2015-11 will have on its financial position and results of operations.

In September 2015, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 2015-16, Business Combinations: Simplifying the
Accounting for Measurement-Period Adjustments (“ASU 2015-16”).  ASU 2015-16 simplifies how adjustments are
made to provisional amounts recognized in a business combination during the measurement period.  U.S. Cellular is
required to adopt ASU 2015-16 on January 1, 2016.  U.S. Cellular is evaluating the effects that adoption of ASU
2015-16 will have on its financial position, results of operations, and disclosures.

Amounts Collected from Customers and Remitted to Governmental Authorities

U.S. Cellular records amounts collected from customers and remitted to governmental authorities net within a tax
liability account if the tax is assessed upon the customer and U.S. Cellular merely acts as an agent in collecting the tax
on behalf of the imposing governmental authority.   If the tax is assessed upon U.S. Cellular, then amounts collected
from customers as recovery of the tax are recorded in Service revenues and amounts remitted to governmental
authorities are recorded in Selling, general and administrative expenses in the Consolidated Statement of Operations.
The amounts recorded gross in revenues that are billed to customers and remitted to governmental authorities totaled
$18.6 million and $59.8 million for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015, respectively, and $23.1
million and $74.8 million for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2014, respectively.

2.    Fair Value Measurements

As of September 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014, U.S. Cellular did not have any financial or nonfinancial assets or
liabilities that were required to be recorded at fair value in its Consolidated Balance Sheet in accordance with GAAP.

The provisions of GAAP establish a fair value hierarchy that contains three levels for inputs used in fair value
measurements.  Level 1 inputs include quoted market prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets.  Level
2 inputs include quoted market prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets or quoted market prices for
identical assets and liabilities in inactive markets.  Level 3 inputs are unobservable.  A financial instrument’s level
within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value
measurement.  A financial instrument’s level within the fair value hierarchy is not representative of its expected
performance or its overall risk profile and, therefore, Level 3 assets are not necessarily higher risk than Level 2 or
Level 1 assets.
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U.S. Cellular has applied the provisions of fair value accounting for purposes of computing the fair value of financial
instruments for disclosure purposes as displayed below.

Level within the Fair Value Hierarchy
September 30, 2015 December 31, 2014
Book
Value Fair Value BookValue Fair Value

(Dollars in
thousands)
Cash and cash
equivalents 1 $596,766 $596,766 $211,513 $211,513 

Long-term debt
Retail 2 617,000 624,267 617,000 608,462 
Institutional 2 532,940 489,375 532,722 513,647 
Other 2 216,562 217,371 – – 

The fair value of Cash and cash equivalents approximates the book value due to the short-term nature of these
financial instruments.  Long-term debt excludes capital lease obligations and the current portion of Long-term debt. 
The fair value of “Retail” Long-term debt was estimated using market prices for the 6.95% Senior Notes and 7.25%
Senior Notes.  U.S. Cellular’s
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“Institutional” debt consists of the 6.7% Senior Notes which are traded over the counter.  U.S. Cellular’s “Other” debt
consists of a senior term loan credit facility. U.S. Cellular estimated the fair value of its Institutional and Other debt
through a discounted cash flow analysis using the interest rates or estimated yield to maturity for each borrowing,
which ranged from 2.88% to 7.73% at September 30, 2015. An estimated yield to maturity of 7.25% was used to
estimate fair value of Institutional debt at December 31, 2014. 

3.    Equipment Installment Plans

U.S. Cellular offers customers the option to purchase certain devices under an equipment installment contract over a
period of up to 24 months.  Under certain equipment installment plans, the customer has the right to upgrade to a new
device after a specified period of time and have the remaining unpaid equipment installment contract balance waived,
subject to certain conditions, including trading in the original device in good working condition and signing a new
equipment installment contract.  U.S. Cellular values this trade-in right as a guarantee liability.  The guarantee liability
is initially measured at fair value and is determined based on assumptions including the probability and timing of the
customer upgrading to a new device and the fair value of the device being traded-in at the time of trade-in.  As of
September 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014, the guarantee liability related to these plans was $91.3 million and $57.5
million, respectively, and is reflected in Customer deposits and deferred revenues in the Consolidated Balance Sheet. 

U.S. Cellular equipment installment plans do not provide for explicit interest charges.  For equipment installment
plans with a duration of greater than twelve months, U.S. Cellular imputes interest.

The following table summarizes unbilled equipment installment plan receivables as of September 30, 2015 and
December 31, 2014.  Such amounts are included in the Consolidated Balance Sheet as Accounts receivable – customers
and agents (short-term portion) and Other assets and deferred charges (long-term portion).

(Dollars in
thousands)

September
30, 2015

December
31, 2014

Short-term
portion of
unbilled
equipment
installment
plan
receivables,
gross

$245,218 $127,400 

Short-term
portion of
unbilled
deferred
interest

(18,504) (16,365)

Short-term
portion of
unbilled
allowance
for credit
losses

(9,326) (3,686)
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Short-term
portion of
unbilled
equipment
installment
plan
receivables,
net

$217,388 $107,349 

Long-term
portion of
unbilled
equipment
installment
plan
receivables,
gross

$66,512 $89,435 

Long-term
portion of
unbilled
deferred
interest

(819) (2,791)

Long-term
portion of
unbilled
allowance
for credit
losses

(4,740) (6,065)

Long-term
portion of
unbilled
equipment
installment
plan
receivables,
net  

$60,953 $80,579 

U.S. Cellular assesses the collectability of equipment installment plan receivables based on historical payment
experience, account aging and other qualitative factors.  To mitigate credit risk, U.S. Cellular requires certain
customers who desire to purchase equipment under an installment plan to make a down payment.

U.S. Cellular recorded out-of-period adjustments during the nine months ended September 30, 2015 due to errors
related to equipment installment plan transactions that were attributable to 2014.  U.S. Cellular has determined that
these adjustments were not material to the prior quarterly or annual periods, and also were not material to the current
period or anticipated full year 2015 results.  These equipment installment plan adjustments had the impact of reducing
Equipment sales revenues by $6.2 million and Income before income taxes by $5.8 million for the nine months ended
September 30, 2015. These adjustments were made in the first six months of 2015.
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4.    Income Taxes

U.S. Cellular is included in a consolidated federal income tax return and in certain state income tax returns with other
members of the TDS consolidated group.  For financial statement purposes, U.S. Cellular and its subsidiaries compute
their income tax expense as if they comprised a separate affiliated group and were not included in the TDS
consolidated group.

U.S. Cellular’s overall effective tax rate on Income (loss) before income taxes for the three and nine months ended
September 30, 2015 were 38.5% and 39.2%, respectively.  The effective tax rates for the three and nine months ended
September 30, 2014 were not meaningful due to the relatively low amount of Income (loss) before income taxes and
the impact of a $6.4 million tax expense related to a valuation allowance recorded against certain state deferred tax
assets.  U.S. Cellular determined that such deferred tax assets were not realizable, on a more likely than not basis.

9
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5.    Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings (loss) per share attributable to U.S. Cellular shareholders is computed by dividing Net income (loss)
attributable to U.S. Cellular shareholders by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the
period. Diluted earnings (loss) per share attributable to U.S. Cellular shareholders is computed by dividing Net income
(loss) attributable to U.S. Cellular shareholders by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during
the period adjusted to include the effects of potentially dilutive securities. Potentially dilutive securities primarily
include incremental shares issuable upon exercise of outstanding stock options and the vesting of restricted stock
units.

The amounts used in computing earnings (loss) per common share and the effects of potentially dilutive securities on
the weighted average number of common shares were as follows:

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2015 2014 2015 2014

(Dollars and shares in
thousands, except per
share amounts)
Net income (loss)
attributable to U.S.
Cellular shareholders

$63,594 $ (22,165) $ 243,010 $ (21,472)

Weighted average
number of shares used
in basic

  earnings (loss) per
share

84,333 84,233 84,224 84,262 

Effects of dilutive
securities:
Stock options 140 – 151 – 
Restricted stock units 474 – 494 – 
Weighted average
number of shares used
in diluted

  earnings (loss) per
share

84,947 84,233 84,869 84,262 

Basic earnings (loss)
per share attributable
to U.S. Cellular

  shareholders

$0.75 $ (0.26) $ 2.89 $ (0.25)

Diluted earnings (loss)
per share attributable

$0.75 $ (0.26) $ 2.86 $ (0.25)
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to

  U.S. Cellular
shareholders

Certain Common Shares issuable upon the exercise of stock options or vesting of restricted stock units were not
included in average diluted shares outstanding for the calculation of Diluted earnings (loss) per share attributable to
U.S. Cellular shareholders because their effects were antidilutive. The number of such Common Shares excluded, if
any, is shown in the table below.

Three Months
Ended

Nine Months
Ended

September
30,

September
30,

2015 2014 2015 2014
(Shares in
thousands)
Stock
options 3,476 3,484 3,120 3,234 

Restricted
stock units 1 1,226 289 1,189 

6.    Acquisitions, Divestitures and Exchanges

Divestiture Transaction 

On May 16, 2013, pursuant to a Purchase and Sale Agreement, U.S. Cellular sold customers and certain PCS spectrum
licenses to subsidiaries of Sprint Corp. fka Sprint Nextel Corporation (“Sprint”) in U.S. Cellular’s Chicago, central
Illinois, St. Louis and certain Indiana/Michigan/Ohio markets (“Divestiture Markets”) in consideration for $480 million
in cash. The Purchase and Sale Agreement also contemplated certain other agreements, together with the Purchase and
Sale Agreement collectively referred to as the “Divestiture Transaction.”

These agreements require Sprint to reimburse U.S. Cellular up to $200 million (the “Sprint Cost Reimbursement”) for
certain network decommissioning costs, network site lease rent and termination costs, network access termination
costs, and employee termination benefits for specified engineering employees.  As of September 30, 2015, U.S.
Cellular had received a cumulative
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total of $109.3 million pursuant to the Sprint Cost Reimbursement.  For the nine months ended September 30, 2015
and 2014, $27.6 million and $52.0 million, respectively, of the Sprint Cost Reimbursement had been received and
recorded in Cash received from divestitures and exchanges in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows.

For the nine months ended September 30, 2015 and 2014, as a result of the Divestiture Transaction, U.S. Cellular
recognized gains of $6.2 million and $28.1 million, respectively, in (Gain) loss on sale of business and other exit
costs, net.  For the three months ended September 30, 2015 and 2014, U.S. Cellular recognized gains of $0.3 million
and $10.4 million, respectively.

Other Acquisitions, Divestitures and Exchanges

In March 2015, U.S. Cellular exchanged certain of its unbuilt PCS licenses for certain other PCS licenses
located in U.S. Cellular’s existing operating markets and $117.0 million of cash.  As of the transaction date,
the licenses received in the transaction had an estimated fair value, per a market approach, of $43.5 million. 
A gain of $125.2 million was recorded in (Gain) loss on license sales and exchanges, net in the Consolidated
Statement of Operations in the first quarter of 2015.

• 

An FCC auction of AWS-3 spectrum licenses (“Auction 97”) ended in January 2015.  U.S. Cellular participated
in Auction 97 indirectly through its limited partnership interest in Advantage Spectrum L.P. (“Advantage
Spectrum”).  Advantage Spectrum was the provisional winning bidder for 124 licenses for an aggregate
winning bid of $338.3 million, after its designated entity discount of 25%.  Advantage Spectrum’s bid amount,
less the initial deposit amount of $60.0 million paid in 2014, was paid to the FCC in March 2015.  These
licenses have not yet been granted by the FCC.  See Note 10 — Variable Interest Entities for additional
information.

• 

In December 2014, U.S. Cellular entered into an agreement with a third party to sell 595 towers and certain
related contracts, assets, and liabilities for $159.0 million.  This agreement and related transactions are
referred to as the “Tower Sale” and were accomplished in two closings.  The first closing occurred in December
2014 and included the sale of 236 towers, without tenants, for $10.0 million.  On this same date, U.S. Cellular
received $7.5 million in earnest money.  At the time of the first closing, a $3.8 million gain was recorded. 
The second closing for the remaining 359 towers, primarily with tenants, took place in January 2015, at which
time U.S. Cellular received $141.5 million in additional cash proceeds and recorded a gain of $107.7 million
in (Gain) loss on sale of business and other exit costs, net.

• 

In September 2014, U.S. Cellular entered into an agreement with a third party to exchange certain PCS and
AWS licenses for certain other PCS and AWS licenses and $28.0 million of cash.  This license exchange was
accomplished in two closings.  The first closing occurred in December 2014 at which time U.S. Cellular
received licenses with an estimated fair value, per a market approach, of $51.5 million, recorded a $21.7
million gain and recorded an $18.3 million deferred credit in Other current liabilities.  The license that was
transferred to the counterparty in the second closing had a net book value of $22.2 million.  The second
closing occurred in July 2015.  At the time of the second closing, U.S. Cellular received $28.0 million in cash
and recognized the deferred credit from the first closing, resulting in a total gain of $24.1 million recorded on
this part of the license exchange.

• 
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7.    Intangible Assets

Changes in U.S. Cellular’s Licenses for the nine months ended September 30, 2015 are presented below.  There were
no significant changes to Goodwill during the nine months ended September 30, 2015.

Licenses

(Dollars in
thousands)
Balance
December 31,
2014

$1,443,438 

Acquisitions
(1) 345,656 

Exchanges
(2) 43,485 

Other 1,482 
Balance
September 30,
2015

$1,834,061 

(1)

Amount includes
payments totaling
$338.3 million
made by
Advantage
Spectrum to the
FCC for licenses
in which it was
the provisional
winning bidder in
Auction 97.  See
Note 6 —
Acquisitions,
Divestitures and
Exchanges, and
Note 10 — Variable
Interest Entities
for further
information.

(2) Amount
represents licenses
received in the
March 2015 PCS
license exchange.
See Note 6 —
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Acquisitions,
Divestitures and
Exchanges for
further
information. 
Licenses disposed
of in this
exchange and the
exchange that
closed in July
2015 were
previously
removed from the
Licenses balance
and reflected in
Assets held for
sale in the
Consolidated
Balance Sheet as
of December 31,
2014.

8.    Investments in Unconsolidated Entities

Investments in unconsolidated entities consist of amounts invested in wireless entities in which U.S. Cellular holds a
noncontrolling interest. These investments are accounted for using either the equity or cost method.

The following table, which is based on information provided in part by third parties, summarizes the combined results
of operations of U.S. Cellular’s equity method investments.

Three Months Ended
September 30,

Nine Months Ended
September 30,

2015 2014 2015 2014
(Dollars in
thousands)
Revenues $1,733,402 $ 1,643,734 $ 5,184,186 $ 4,861,057 
Operating
expenses 1,263,320 1,225,417 3,826,798 3,540,783 

Operating
income 470,082 418,317 1,357,388 1,320,274 

Other
income
(loss), net

(9,843) 1,651 (15,466) 4,077 

Net income$460,239 $ 419,968 $ 1,341,922 $ 1,324,351 

9.    Debt

In January 2015, U.S. Cellular entered into a senior term loan credit facility.  In July 2015, U.S. Cellular borrowed the
full amount of $225 million available under this facility in two separate draws at an overall interest rate of 2.88%. 
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The interest rate on outstanding borrowings will be reset at three and six month intervals at a rate of LIBOR plus 250
basis points.  This credit facility provides for the draws to be continued on a long-term basis under terms that are
readily determinable.  U.S. Cellular has the ability and intent to carry the debt for the duration of the agreement. 
Principal reductions will be due and payable in quarterly installments of $2.8 million beginning in March 2016
through December 2021, and the remaining unpaid balance will be due and payable in January 2022.  These funds will
be used for general corporate purposes, including working capital, spectrum purchases and capital expenditures.

10.   Variable Interest Entities

U.S. Cellular consolidates variable interest entities (“VIEs”) in which it has a controlling financial interest and is the
primary beneficiary. A controlling financial interest will have both of the following characteristics: (a) the power to
direct the VIE activities that most significantly impact economic performance and (b) the obligation to absorb VIE
losses and the right to receive benefits that are significant to the VIE.  U.S. Cellular reviews these criteria initially at
the time it enters into agreements and subsequently when reconsideration events occur.
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Consolidated VIEs

As of September 30, 2015, U.S. Cellular holds a variable interest in and consolidates the following VIEs:

Advantage Spectrum and Frequency Advantage L.P., the general partner of Advantage Spectrum;• 
Aquinas Wireless L.P. (“Aquinas Wireless”); and• 
King Street Wireless L.P. (“King Street Wireless”) and King Street Wireless, Inc., the general partner of King
Street Wireless.

• 

The power to direct the activities that most significantly impact the economic performance of Advantage Spectrum,
Aquinas Wireless and King Street Wireless (collectively, the “limited partnerships”) is shared.  Specifically, the general
partner of these VIEs has the exclusive right to manage, operate and control the limited partnerships and make all
decisions to carry on the business of the partnerships; however, the general partner of each partnership needs the
consent of the limited partner, a U.S. Cellular subsidiary, to sell or lease certain licenses, to make certain large
expenditures, admit other partners or liquidate the limited partnerships.  Although the power to direct the activities of
the VIEs is shared, U.S. Cellular has a disproportionate level of exposure to the variability associated with the
economic performance of the VIEs, indicating that U.S. Cellular is the primary beneficiary of the VIEs.  Accordingly,
these VIEs are consolidated.

The following table presents the classification of the consolidated VIEs’ assets and liabilities in U.S. Cellular’s
Consolidated Balance Sheet.

September
30,

December
31,

2015 2014
(Dollars in
thousands)
Assets
Cash and cash
equivalents $1,681 $2,588 

Other current
assets 175 278 

Licenses (1) 648,661 312,977 
Property, plant
and equipment,
net

8,635 10,671 

Other assets and
deferred
charges

324 60,059 

Total assets $659,476 $386,573 

Liabilities
Current
liabilities $1 $110 

Deferred
liabilities and

494 622 
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credits
Total liabilities $495 $732 

(1)

At September 30, 2015, includes
payments totaling $338.3 million
made by Advantage Spectrum to the
FCC as described below.

Other Related Matters

In March 2015, King Street Wireless made a $60.0 million distribution to its investors.  Of this distribution, $6.0
million was provided to King Street Wireless, Inc. and $54.0 million was provided to U.S. Cellular.

FCC Auction 97 ended in January 2015.  U.S. Cellular participated in Auction 97 indirectly through its interest in
Advantage Spectrum.  A subsidiary of U.S. Cellular is a limited partner in Advantage Spectrum.  Advantage Spectrum
qualified as a “designated entity,” and thereby was eligible for bid credits with respect to spectrum purchased in Auction
97.  Advantage Spectrum was the winning bidder for 124 licenses for an aggregate bid of $338.3 million, after its
designated entity discount of 25%.  This amount is classified as Licenses in U.S. Cellular’s Consolidated Balance
Sheet.  Advantage Spectrum’s bid amount, less the initial deposit of $60.0 million paid in 2014, plus certain other
charges totaling $2.3 million, were paid to the FCC in March 2015.  To help fund this payment, U.S. Cellular made
loans and capital contributions to Advantage Spectrum and Frequency Advantage totaling $280.6 million during the
nine months ended September 30, 2015.  There were no capital contributions, loans or advances made to U.S.
Cellular’s VIEs during the nine months ended September 30, 2014.

Advantage Spectrum, Aquinas Wireless and King Street Wireless were formed to participate in FCC auctions of
wireless spectrum and to fund, establish, and provide wireless service with respect to any FCC licenses won in the
auctions. As such, these entities have risks similar to those described in the “Risk Factors” in U.S. Cellular’s Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 2014.
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U.S. Cellular may agree to make additional capital contributions and/or advances to Advantage Spectrum, Aquinas
Wireless or King Street Wireless and/or to their general partners to provide additional funding for the development of
licenses granted in various auctions.  U.S. Cellular may finance such amounts with a combination of cash on hand,
borrowings under its revolving credit agreement and/or other long-term debt. There is no assurance that U.S. Cellular
will be able to obtain additional financing on commercially reasonable terms or at all to provide such financial
support.

During the three and nine-months ended September 30, 2015, U.S. Cellular recorded out-of-period adjustments
attributable to the third quarter of 2013 through the second quarter of 2015 related to an agreement with King Street
Wireless.  U.S. Cellular has determined that these adjustments were not material to the prior quarterly or annual
periods, and also were not material to the current period or anticipated full year 2015 results.  As a result of these
out-of-period adjustments, for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015, Net income decreased by $3.2
million and $2.8 million, and Net income attributable to U.S. Cellular shareholders decreased by $4.5 million and $4.0
million, respectively.

11.  Common Share Repurchases

On November 17, 2009, the Board of Directors of U.S. Cellular authorized the repurchase of up to 1,300,000
Common Shares on an annual basis beginning in 2009 and continuing each year thereafter, on a cumulative basis. 
These purchases will be made pursuant to open market purchases, block purchases, private purchases or otherwise,
depending on market conditions.  This authorization does not have an expiration date.

Share repurchases made under this authorization were as follows:

Nine Months
Ended
September 30,
2015 2014

(Dollar
amounts
and shares
in
thousands,
except per
share data)
Number of
shares 154 384 

Average
cost per
share

$34.85 $39.37 

Amount $5,362 $15,124 
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Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

United States Cellular Corporation (“U.S. Cellular”) owns, operates and invests in wireless markets throughout the
United States. U.S. Cellular is an 84%-owned subsidiary of Telephone and Data Systems, Inc. (“TDS”) as of September
30, 2015.

U.S. Cellular provides wireless telecommunications services to approximately 4.8 million customers in 23 states. As
of September 30, 2015, U.S. Cellular’s average penetration rate in its consolidated operating markets was 15%. U.S.
Cellular operates on a customer satisfaction strategy, striving to meet or exceed customer needs by providing a
comprehensive range of wireless products and services, local and convenient points of distribution, excellent customer
support, and a high-quality network.

The following discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with U.S. Cellular’s interim unaudited
consolidated financial statements and notes included in Item 1 above, and with the description of U.S. Cellular’s
business, its audited consolidated financial statements and Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations included in U.S. Cellular’s Annual Report on Form 10-K (“Form 10-K”) for the
year ended December 31, 2014.

OVERVIEW

The following is a summary of certain selected information contained in the comprehensive Management’s Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations that follows. The overview does not contain all of the
information that may be important. You should carefully read the entire Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations and not rely solely on the overview.

Financial and operating highlights for the nine months ended September 30, 2015 included matters discussed in the
notes to the financial statements and the following:

In March 2015, U.S. Cellular announced that it would discontinue its loyalty rewards program effective
September 1, 2015.  All unredeemed rewards points expired at that time and the deferred revenue balance
related to such expired points was recognized as service revenues.  The amount of deferred revenue so
recognized was $58.2 million.

• 

U.S. Cellular completed certain license exchanges, indirectly participated in a spectrum auction and
completed the sale of towers outside of its operating markets.  See Note 6 — Acquisitions, Divestitures and
Exchanges and Note 10 — Variable Interest Entities in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for
additional information related to these transactions. 

• 

Retail customer net additions were 75,000 in 2015 compared to net losses of 60,000 in 2014.  In the postpaid
category, there were net additions of 43,000 in 2015, compared to net losses of 67,000 in 2014.  Postpaid
results improved significantly due to effective pricing, promotions and retention programs as well as enhanced
device offerings and the resolution of billing system conversion issues.  In the prepaid category, net additions
were 32,000 in 2015 compared to 7,000 in 2014.

• 

Total customers were 4,807,000 at September 30, 2015, including 4,721,000 retail customers (98% of total).
Postpaid customers comprised approximately 92% of U.S. Cellular’s retail customers as of September 30,
2015. 

• 

The postpaid churn rate was 1.4% in 2015 compared to 1.9% in 2014.  The prepaid churn rate was 5.4% in
2015 compared to 6.6% in 2014.

• 
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Service average revenue per user (“ARPU”) decreased to $59.29 in 2015 from $60.43 in 2014 due to a decrease
in billed ARPU and inbound roaming revenues. Billed ARPU decreased to $53.00 in 2015 from $53.47 in
2014 reflecting a decrease in postpaid ARPU due to discounts on shared data plans provided to customers on
equipment installment plans and those providing their own device at the time of activation or renewal,
partially offset by the impact of the discontinued loyalty rewards points program and an increase in prepaid
ARPU.  The expiration of the loyalty rewards points had the effect of increasing postpaid ARPU by $1.50 for
the nine months ended September 30, 2015.

• 

Postpaid billed average revenue per account (“ARPA”) increased to $138.55 in 2015 from $132.19 in 2014 due
to increased adoption of shared data plans, an increase in the number of devices per account and the impact of
the discontinued loyalty rewards points program.  The expiration of the loyalty rewards points had the effect
of increasing postpaid ARPA by $3.74 for the nine months ended September 30, 2015.

• 

Postpaid handset customers on smartphone service plans increased to 72% as of September 30, 2015
compared to 62% as of September 30, 2014. In addition, smartphones represented 87% of all handsets sold in
2015 compared to 79% in 2014.

• 

Total operating revenues increased $125.8 million, or 4%, to $3.0 billion in 2015 due primarily to higher
equipment sales revenues reflecting increased sales under equipment installment plans. 

• 
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Operating income increased $430.4 million, to $336.5 million in 2015. Gain (loss) on license sales and
exchanges, net and Gain (loss) on sale of business and other exit costs, net, combined, contributed $260.7
million and $119.1 million to operating income in 2015 and 2014, respectively.  Operating income increased
due to these gains, the impact of loyalty rewards points expiration and lower loss on equipment sold, selling,
general and administrative expenses, and depreciation, amortization and accretion expense, partially offset by
a decrease in billed ARPU and higher system operations expense. 

• 

Basic earnings per share and Diluted earnings per share were $2.89 and $2.86 in 2015, which was $3.14 and
$3.11 higher, respectively, than in 2014.

• 

Cash flows from operating activities were $555.5 million.  At September 30, 2015, Cash and cash equivalents
totaled $596.8 million and the revolving credit facility provided borrowing capacity of $282.5 million.  In July
2015, U.S. Cellular borrowed $225 million under a senior term loan credit facility (“Term Loan”) to be used for
general corporate purposes, including working capital, spectrum purchases and capital expenditures.

• 

Total additions to Property, plant and equipment were $334.9 million, including expenditures to complete the
network rollout of fourth generation Long-term Evolution (“4G LTE”) equipment, construct cell sites, increase
capacity in existing cell sites and switches, outfit new and remodel existing retail stores, and enhance billing
and other customer management related systems and platforms. Total cell sites in service increased 0.6%
year-over-year to 6,246.

• 

U.S. Cellular anticipates that its future results may be affected by the following factors:

Effects of industry competition on service and equipment pricing;• 
Impacts of selling devices under equipment installment plans, including potential variability in the number of
customers choosing to sign an equipment installment contract as well as uncertainties related to the number,
timing and realizable value of device trade-ins under equipment installment plans;

• 

Relative ability to attract and retain customers in a competitive marketplace in a cost effective manner;• 
The nature and rate of growth in the wireless industry, requiring U.S. Cellular to grow revenues primarily
from selling additional products and services to its existing customers, increasing the number of multi-device
users among its existing customers, increasing data products and services and attracting wireless customers
switching from other wireless carriers;

• 

Rapid growth in the demand for new data devices and services which may result in increased operating
expenses and the need for additional investment in spectrum, network capacity and enhancements;

• 

Uncertainty related to various Federal Communications Commission (“FCC”) rules and proceedings, and
litigation relating thereto;

• 

The ability to negotiate satisfactory 4G LTE data roaming agreements with additional wireless operators; and• 
The effects of the following:• 

U.S. Cellular completed the migration of its customers to a new Billing and Operational Support System
(“B/OSS”) in the third quarter of 2013.  In the fourth quarter of 2014, U.S. Cellular entered into certain
arrangements pursuant to which U.S. Cellular now outsources certain support functions for its B/OSS to a
third-party vendor.  B/OSS is a complex system and any future operational problems with the system,
including any failure by the vendor to provide the required level of service under the outsourcing
arrangements, could have adverse effects on U.S. Cellular’s results of operations or cash flows;

• 

U.S. Cellular holds a 5.5% ownership interest in the Los Angeles SMSA Limited Partnership (“LA
Partnership”).  U.S. Cellular has been informed by the general partner of the LA Partnership that the LA
Partnership will not make a cash distribution in 2015.  U.S. Cellular currently expects that it might receive a

• 
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cash distribution in the latter half of 2016, although the amount of any such distribution is uncertain.  
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REGULATORY MATTERS

The discussion below includes updates related to recent regulatory developments.  These updates should be read in
conjunction with the disclosures previously provided under “Regulatory Matters” in U.S. Cellular’s Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2014.

FCC Net Neutrality Order

In February 2015, the FCC adopted an Open Internet Order relating to new net neutrality rules.  The rules became
effective in June 2015.  The order reclassified high-speed, or broadband, internet access service as a
“telecommunication service,” making it subject to common carrier regulation under Title II of the Communications Act
of 1934.   The order applies equally to fixed and wireless broadband internet service providers and thus applies to
internet broadband services provided by telephone, cable and wireless providers. 

The rules prohibit (i) blocking (broadband providers may not block access to legal content, applications, services, or
non-harmful devices); (ii) throttling (broadband providers may not impair or degrade lawful Internet traffic on the
basis of content, applications, services, or non-harmful devices); and (iii) paid prioritization (broadband providers may
not favor some lawful internet traffic over other lawful traffic in exchange for consideration, i.e., internet “fast lanes” are
prohibited).  Also, internet service providers may not prioritize content and services of their affiliates.  In addition, the
FCC has now asserted jurisdiction over internet traffic exchange, so interconnection arrangements will now be subject
to a statutory requirement that all charges, practices, classifications, and regulations for and in connection with
interconnection must be just and reasonable.  The rules also include a general conduct standard that will be applied on
a case-by-case basis to address questionable practices as they occur that unreasonably interfere with or unreasonably
disadvantage lawful content, applications, services, or devices to be used by end users (individuals or entities that use
a broadband internet access service), or made available by edge providers (individuals or entities that provide any
content, application, or service over the internet, and any individual or entity that provides a device used for accessing
any content, application, or service over the internet).  Although broadband internet access providers will be allowed
to engage in reasonable network management practices, it is uncertain what practices will be permitted by the FCC. 
The order also expands the FCC’s current internet transparency rules. 

All of these requirements will be subject to FCC enforcement and potential third-party claims for damages or
equitable relief.  Under Title II, the FCC will have broad regulatory authority over internet services and internet
service providers.  Although the FCC indicated that it will forbear from a number of utility-style regulations, such as
rate regulation, tariffs, and unbundling requirements, the FCC could determine to apply such regulations and
requirements in the future.  Also, it is uncertain if internet services may be subject to the Federal Universal Service
Fund (“USF”) contributions or taxation in the future as a result of the reclassification under Title II.  Lawsuits have been
filed challenging the net neutrality rules and the FCC’s decision to reclassify broadband internet access service under
Title II.  U.S. Cellular cannot predict the outcome of these proceedings or the impact on its business.

Changes to FCC’s Designated Entity Rules

U.S. Cellular participated in prior FCC spectrum auctions through limited partnerships that qualified as “designated
entities” under FCC rules and, as such, were eligible for bid credit discounts of 25% with respect to licenses won in the
auctions.  In July 2015, the FCC adopted a Report and Order that amended the FCC’s designated entity rules.  The
amended rules include caps on bid credits that designated entities may receive in future auctions and modify the
attribution rules.  The amended rules also restrict certain joint bidding agreements but permit certain other
arrangements involving more than one party.  Additionally, the amended rules make certain other changes to the FCC’s
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competitive bidding rules.  U.S. Cellular is evaluating how these amended rules may impact future FCC spectrum
auctions and its potential participation through a designated entity.

FCC Auction 1000

The FCC has scheduled an auction of 600 MHz spectrum licenses, referred to as Auction 1000. Auction 1000
involves: (1) a “reverse auction” in which broadcast television licensees submit bids to voluntarily relinquish spectrum
usage rights in exchange for payments; (2) a “repacking” of the broadcast television bands in order to free up certain
broadcast spectrum for other uses; and (3) a “forward auction” of licenses for spectrum cleared through this process. 
Interested broadcasters must file their applications by December 18, 2015 and forward auction bidders must file
applications by January 28, 2016.  U.S. Cellular evaluates opportunities to acquire additional spectrum in FCC
auctions and may participate in the forward auction as a bidder or member of a bidding group.  If U.S. Cellular
participates in the forward auction, information relating to this will be disclosed at a later time, subject to FCC rules. 
In such event, applicable FCC anti-collusion rules will place certain restrictions on public disclosures and business
communications with other companies relating to U.S. Cellular’s participation, commencing on the application
deadline of January 28, 2016 until the down payment deadline for Auction 1000, which will be ten business days after
release of the FCC’s Channel Reassignment Public Notice.  These anti-collusion rules, which could last six months or
more, may restrict the conduct of certain U.S. Cellular activities with other applicants in Auction 1000 as well as with
nationwide providers of wireless services which are not applicants in Auction 1000.  The restrictions could have an
adverse effect on U.S. Cellular’s business, financial condition or results of operations.
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Nine Months Ended September 30, 2015 Compared to Nine Months Ended September 30, 2014

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

Summary Operating Data for U.S. Cellular Consolidated Markets

As of or for Nine Months Ended
September 30, 2015 2014

Retail Customers
Postpaid
Total at end of period 4,341,000 4,200,000 
Gross additions 591,000 638,000 
Net additions (losses) 43,000 (67,000)
ARPU(1) $55.54 $56.87 
ARPA(2) $138.55 $132.19 
Churn rate(3) 1.4% 1.9%
Smartphone penetration(4) 72% 62%

Prepaid
Total at end of period 380,000 350,000 
Gross additions 209,000 214,000 
Net additions 32,000 7,000 
ARPU(1) $35.88 $33.59 
Churn rate(3) 5.4% 6.6%

Total customers at end of period 4,807,000 4,674,000 
Billed ARPU(1) $53.00 $53.47 
Service revenue ARPU(1) $59.29 $60.43 
Smartphones sold as a percent
of total handsets sold 87% 79%

Total Population
Consolidated markets(5)(7) 50,313,000 60,136,000 
Consolidated operating
markets(5)(7) 31,814,000 31,729,000 

Market penetration at end of
period

Consolidated markets(6) 10% 8%
Consolidated operating
markets(6) 15% 15%

Capital expenditures (000s) $334,942 $375,960 
Total cell sites in service 6,246 6,209 
Owned towers in service 3,957 4,487 

(1)

Average Revenue per User (“ARPU”) metrics are
calculated by dividing a revenue base by an average
number of customers by the number of months in the
period.  These revenue bases and customer populations
are shown below:
a.
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Postpaid ARPU consists of total postpaid service
revenues and postpaid customers.

b.Prepaid ARPU consists of total prepaid servicerevenues and prepaid customers.

c.
Billed ARPU consists of total postpaid, prepaid and
reseller service revenues and postpaid, prepaid and
reseller customers.

d.

Service revenue ARPU consists of total postpaid,
prepaid and reseller service revenues, inbound roaming
and other service revenues and postpaid, prepaid and
reseller customers.

(2)

Average Revenue per Account (“ARPA”) metric is
calculated by dividing total postpaid service revenues by
the average number of postpaid accounts by the number
of months in the period.

(3)

Churn metrics represent the percentage of the postpaid or
prepaid customers that disconnect service each month.
These metrics represent the average monthly postpaid or
prepaid churn rate for each respective period.

(4)

Smartphones represent wireless devices which run on an
Android, Apple, BlackBerry or Windows Mobile
operating system, excluding connected devices. 
Smartphone penetration is calculated by dividing
postpaid smartphone customers by total postpaid handset
customers.

(5)

During the third quarter of 2015, U.S. Cellular reassessed
population statistics with respect to markets which U.S.
Cellular consolidates and revised its calculations to more
accurately accumulate such population statistics.  As a
result, prior period population data and corresponding
market penetration ratios were revised for markets that
U.S. Cellular currently consolidates, or previously
consolidated in the periods presented.  The decrease in
the population of Consolidated markets is due primarily
to the license exchange transactions of certain
non-operating licenses in North Carolina in December
2014 and Illinois and Indiana in March 2015.  Total
Population is used only to calculate market penetration of
consolidated markets and consolidated operating
markets, respectively. See footnote (6) below.
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(6)

Market
penetration is
calculated by
dividing the
number of
wireless
customers at
the end of
the period by
the total
population of
consolidated
markets and
consolidated
operating
markets,
respectively,
as estimated
by Claritas.

(7)

As licenses
awarded in
Auction 97
have not yet
been granted,
population
statistics
related to
such licenses
have not
been
included in
the
population
data.

Components of Operating Income (Loss)

Percentage
Nine Months Ended
September 30, 2015 2014 Change Change

(Dollars in thousands)
Retail service $2,278,049 $2,254,716 $23,333 1%
Inbound roaming 148,542 174,283 (25,741) (15)%
Other 121,953 119,150 2,803 2%
Service revenues 2,548,544 2,548,149 395 -
Equipment sales 461,274 335,854 125,420 37%
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Total operating revenues 3,009,818 2,884,003 125,815 4%

System operations
(excluding Depreciation,
amortization

   and accretion reported
below)

585,935 567,488 18,447 3%

Cost of equipment sold 779,228 850,314 (71,086) (8)%
Selling, general and
administrative 1,106,524 1,197,361 (90,837) (8)%

Depreciation,
amortization and
accretion

450,035 465,042 (15,007) (3)%

(Gain) loss on asset
disposals, net 12,268 16,774 (4,506) (27)%

(Gain) loss on sale of
business and other exit
costs, net

(113,825) (27,694) (86,131) >(100)%

(Gain) loss on license
sales and exchanges, net (146,884) (91,446) (55,438) (61)%

Total operating expenses 2,673,281 2,977,839 (304,558) (10)%
Operating income (loss) $336,537 $(93,836) $430,373 >100%

Operating Revenues

Service revenues

Service revenues consist primarily of: (i) charges for access, airtime, roaming, recovery of regulatory costs and value
added services, including data products and services, provided to U.S. Cellular’s retail customers and to end users
through third party resellers (“retail service”); (ii) charges to other wireless carriers whose customers use U.S. Cellular’s
wireless systems when roaming; and (iii) amounts received from the Federal Universal Service Fund (“USF”), tower
rental revenue, and revenue from spectrum leases.

Retail service revenues

Retail service revenues increased due primarily to the growth in U.S. Cellular’s average customer base, offset by a
decrease in billed ARPU, net of the impact of revenues recognized from expired rewards points.

Billed ARPU decreased to $53.00 in 2015 from $53.47 in 2014, reflecting a decrease in postpaid ARPU of $1.33 due
primarily to discounts on shared data plans provided to customers on equipment installment plans and those providing
their own device at the time of activation or renewal, partially offset by the growth in customers, increased adoption of
shared data plans and the $1.50 postpaid ARPU impact of the revenue recognized from expired rewards points.
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U.S. Cellular expects continued pressure on retail service revenues in the foreseeable future due to industry
competition for customers and related effects on pricing of service plan offerings offset to some degree by continued
adoption of smartphones and data usage. Beginning in the second quarter of 2014, U.S. Cellular expanded its offerings
of equipment installment plans.  To the extent that customers adopt these plans, U.S. Cellular expects an increase in
equipment sales revenues.  However, certain of the equipment installment plans provide the customer with a reduction
in the monthly access charge for the device; thus, to the extent that existing customers adopt such plans, U.S. Cellular
expects a reduction in retail service revenues and ARPU.

Inbound roaming revenues

Inbound roaming revenues decreased due primarily to lower rates for both voice and data traffic and lower volumes
for voice traffic.

Other revenues

Other revenues increased due primarily to increases in revenues from spectrum leases and mobile applications.

Revenues representing amounts received from the Federal USF in 2015 were $69.1 million, which remained flat year
over year.  Pursuant to the FCC's Reform Order (“Reform Order”), U.S. Cellular’s current Federal USF support is being
phased down at the rate of 20% per year beginning July 1, 2012.  The Phase II Mobility Fund was not operational as
of July 2014 and therefore, as provided by the Reform Order, the phase down was suspended at 60% of the baseline
amount.  U.S. Cellular will continue to receive USF support at the 60% level until the FCC takes further action.  At
this time, U.S. Cellular cannot predict what changes that the FCC might make to the USF high cost support program
and, accordingly, cannot predict whether such changes will have a material adverse effect on U.S. Cellular’s business,
financial condition or results of operations.

Equipment sales revenues

Equipment sales revenues include revenues from sales of wireless devices and related accessories to both new and
existing customers, as well as revenues from sales of devices to agents. U.S. Cellular offers a competitive line of
quality wireless devices to both new and existing customers. U.S. Cellular's customer acquisition and retention efforts
include offering new wireless devices to customers at discounted prices. U.S. Cellular also continues to sell wireless
devices to agents including national retailers; this practice enables U.S. Cellular to provide better control over the
quality of wireless devices sold to its customers, establish roaming preferences and earn quantity discounts from
wireless device manufacturers which are passed along to agents and other retailers.

Equipment sales revenues increased due primarily to an increase in average revenue per device sold (including the
impact of sales under equipment installment plans and a mix shift to smartphones and connected devices) and an
increase in sales of accessories, partially offset by a decrease in total devices sold of 9%.  Equipment sales revenues in
2015 include $226.1 million related to equipment installment plan sales compared to $111.8 million in 2014.  See
Note 3 — Equipment Installment Plans in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information.

Operating Expenses

System operations expenses (excluding Depreciation, amortization and accretion)

System operations expenses (excluding Depreciation, amortization, and accretion) include charges from
telecommunications service providers for U.S. Cellular’s customers’ use of their facilities, costs related to local
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interconnection to the wireline network, charges for cell site rent and maintenance of U.S. Cellular’s network,
long-distance charges, outbound roaming expenses and payments to third‑party data product and platform developers.

Key components of the net change in System operations expenses were as follows:

Expenses incurred when U.S. Cellular’s customers used other carriers’ networks while roaming increased $21.7
million, or 16%, due primarily to an increase in data roaming usage. 

• 

Maintenance, utility and cell site expenses increased $13.9 million, or 5%, driven primarily by an increase in
cell site and switch maintenance.

• 

Customer usage expenses decreased by $17.1 million, or 11% , driven by lower fees for platform and content
providers and a decrease in toll message charges driven by rate reductions.

• 

U.S. Cellular expects system operations expenses to increase in the future to support the continued growth in cell sites
and other network facilities as it continues to add capacity, enhance quality and deploy new technologies as well as to
support increases in total customer usage, particularly data usage. However, these increases are expected to be offset
to some extent by cost savings generated by shifting data traffic to the 4G LTE network from the 3G network.
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Cost of equipment sold

Cost of equipment sold decreased due primarily to a 9% reduction in the total number of devices sold and a slight
decrease in the average cost per device sold due to lower costs from original equipment manufacturers, partially offset
by higher sales of accessories.  Cost of equipment sold in 2015 includes $300.7 million related to equipment
installment plan sales compared to $160.9 million in 2014.

U.S. Cellular's loss on equipment, defined as equipment sales revenues less cost of equipment sold, was $318.0
million and $514.5 million for 2015 and 2014, respectively.  The $196.5 million decrease in loss on equipment was
driven by a reduction in the total number of devices sold and a higher mix of equipment installment plan sales which
have a lower loss per device. During the nine months ended September 30, 2015 and 2014, 43% and 20% of total
devices sold to postpaid customers were made under equipment installment plans, respectively. In addition, lower
handset sales contributed to the decline in loss on equipment.  

U.S. Cellular expects loss on equipment to continue to be a significant cost in the foreseeable future as iconic
data-centric wireless devices continue to increase in cost and wireless carriers continue to experience competitive
pricing pressures.  However, U.S. Cellular expects sales of devices under equipment installment plans will offset loss
on equipment to some degree.

Selling, general and administrative expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses include salaries, commissions and expenses of field sales and retail
personnel and facilities; telesales department salaries and expenses; agent commissions and related expenses;
corporate marketing and merchandise management; and advertising expenses. Selling, general and administrative
expenses also include bad debts expense, costs of operating customer care centers and corporate expenses.

Key components of the net change in Selling, general and administrative expenses were as follows:

Selling and marketing expense decreased by $22.9 million, or 4%, due primarily to decreases in labor and
commissions expenses, partially offset by increases in advertising expenses.

• 

General and administrative expense decreased by $67.9 million, or 10%, due primarily to lower consulting
expenses related to the billing system updates and customer service operations and lower rates for roaming
administration.

• 

Depreciation, amortization and accretion expenses

Depreciation, amortization and accretion decreased due primarily to the cessation of depreciation related to the
Divestiture Transaction and by certain assets becoming fully depreciated, partially offset by an increase in
amortization expense related to billing system updates.  See Note 6 — Acquisitions, Divestitures and Exchanges in the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information.

(Gain) loss on asset disposals, net

(Gain) loss on asset disposals, net was a loss in both 2015 and 2014 due primarily to write-offs and disposals of
certain network assets.

(Gain) loss on sale of business and other exit costs, net
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The net gain in 2015 was due primarily to a $107.7 million gain recognized from the Tower Sale.  The net gain in
2014 resulted from the continuing impact of the Divestiture Transaction.  See Note 6 — Acquisitions, Divestitures and
Exchanges in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information.

(Gain) loss on license sales and exchanges, net

The net gain in 2015 was due primarily to the license exchange of certain of U.S. Cellular’s PCS licenses for certain
other PCS licenses and cash in March 2015.  The net gain in 2014 resulted from the sale of the St. Louis area
non-operating market license and the license exchange in Milwaukee.  See Note 6 — Acquisitions, Divestitures and
Exchanges in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information.
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Components of Other Income (Expense)

Nine Months
Ended
September 30,

2015 2014 Change
Percentage

Change
(Dollars in
thousands,
except per
share amounts)
Operating
income (loss) $336,537 $(93,836) $430,373 >100%

Equity in
earnings of
unconsolidated
entities

109,729 106,166 3,563 3%

Interest and
dividend
income

25,834 6,029 19,805 >100%

Interest
expense (61,239) (42,712) (18,527) (43)%

Other, net 274 281 (7) (2)%
Total
investment and
other income

74,598 69,764 4,834 7%

Income before
income taxes 411,135 (24,072) 435,207 >100%

Income tax
expense 161,214 746 160,468 >100%

Net income
(loss) 249,921 (24,818) 274,739 >100%

Less: Net
income (loss)
attributable to

  noncontrolling
interests, net of
tax

6,911 (3,346) 10,257 >100%

Net income
attributable to
U.S. Cellular
shareholders

$243,010 $(21,472) $264,482 >100%

Basic earnings
per share

$2.89 $(0.25) $3.14 >100%
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attributable to

  U.S. Cellular
shareholders

Diluted
earnings per
share
attributable to

  U.S. Cellular
shareholders

$2.86 $(0.25) $3.11 >100%

Equity in earnings of unconsolidated entities

Equity in earnings of unconsolidated entities represents U.S. Cellular’s share of net income from entities in which it
has a noncontrolling interest and that are accounted for by the equity method.

U.S. Cellular’s investment in the Los Angeles SMSA Limited Partnership (“LA Partnership”) contributed $58.1 million
and $57.8 million to Equity in earnings of unconsolidated entities in 2015 and 2014, respectively.  See Note 8 —
Investments in Unconsolidated Entities in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information.

Interest and dividend income

Interest and dividend income increased due to imputed interest income recognized on equipment installment plans of
$23.8 million and $3.4 million in 2015 and 2014, respectively.  See Note 3 — Equipment Installment Plans in the Notes
to the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information.

Interest expense

The increase in interest expense was due primarily to interest expense related to the $275 million of 7.25% Unsecured
Notes which were sold in December 2014 and interest expense on borrowings from the Term Loan.  Interest cost
capitalized was $3.1 million and $3.7 million for 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Income tax expense

See Note 4 — Income Taxes in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional discussion of the overall
effective tax rate on Income before income taxes.

Net income (loss) attributable to noncontrolling interests, net of tax

The increase from 2014 to 2015 is due primarily to higher income from certain partnerships in 2015.
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Three Months Ended September 30, 2015 Compared to Three Months Ended September 30, 2014

Components of Operating Income (Loss)

Percentage
Three Months Ended
September 30, 2015 2014 Change Change

(Dollars in thousands)
Retail service $796,821 $743,798 $53,023 7%
Inbound roaming 59,169 66,577 (7,408) (11)%
Other 39,970 40,688 (718) (2)%
Service revenues 895,960 851,063 44,897 5%
Equipment sales 172,946 149,356 23,590 16%
Total operating revenues 1,068,906 1,000,419 68,487 7%

System operations
(excluding Depreciation,
amortization

   and accretion reported
below)

198,982 199,750 (768) -

Cost of equipment sold 287,256 307,862 (20,606) (7)%
Selling, general and
administrative 374,585 397,545 (22,960) (6)%

Depreciation,
amortization and
accretion

152,369 148,952 3,417 2%

(Gain) loss on asset
disposals, net 2,618 7,947 (5,329) (67)%

(Gain) loss on sale of
business and other exit
costs, net

(643) (10,283) 9,640 94%

(Gain) loss on license
sales and exchanges, net (23,986) – (23,986) N/M

Total operating expenses 991,181 1,051,773 (60,592) (6)%
Operating income (loss) $77,725 $(51,354) $129,079 >100%
N/M - Not meaningful

Operating Revenues

Retail service revenues

Retail service revenues increased due primarily to the growth in U.S. Cellular’s average customer base and an increase
in billed ARPU, including the impact of revenue recognized from expired rewards points.

Billed ARPU increased to $55.42 in 2015 from $53.24 in 2014, reflecting an increase in postpaid ARPU of $1.75 to
$58.12 due to increased adoption of shared data plans  and the $4.48 postpaid ARPU impact of the expired rewards
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points, partially offset by discounts on shared data plans provided to customers on equipment installment plans and
those providing their own device at the time of activation or renewal.

Inbound roaming revenues

Inbound roaming revenues decreased due primarily to lower rates for both voice and data and a decline in voice
volume.

Other revenues

Other revenues decreased due primarily to a decrease in tower rent revenue due to the Tower Sale, partially offset by
increases in revenue from spectrum leases and mobile applications.  Revenues representing amounts received from the
Federal USF in 2015 were $23.0 million, which remained flat year over year.

Equipment sales revenues

Equipment sales revenues increased due primarily to an increase in average revenue per device sold (including the
impact of sales under equipment installment plans and a mix shift to smartphones and connected devices) and an
increase in sales of accessories, partially offset by a decrease in total devices sold of 3%.  Equipment sales revenues in
2015 include $89.2 million related to equipment installment plan sales compared to $78.2 million in 2014.  See Note 3
— Equipment Installment Plans in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information.
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Operating Expenses

System operations expenses (excluding Depreciation, amortization and accretion)

Key components of the net change in System operations expenses were as follows:

Expenses incurred when U.S. Cellular’s customers used other carriers’ networks while roaming increased $2.1
million, or 4%, due primarily to an increase in data roaming usage.   

• 

Maintenance, utility and cell site expenses increased $5.4 million, or 6%, driven primarily by an increase in
cell site and switch maintenance and repairs.

• 

Customer usage expenses decreased by $8.4 million, or 15%, driven by lower fees for platform and content
providers, lower fixed usage costs due to circuit disconnections and lower net LTE migration costs, and a
decrease in toll message charges driven by rate reductions.

• 

Cost of equipment sold

Cost of equipment sold decreased due primarily to a 3% decrease in the total number of devices sold and a decrease in
the average cost per device sold due to lower costs from original equipment manufacturers, slightly offset by higher
sales of accessories. Cost of equipment sold in 2015 includes $109.3 million related to equipment installment plan
sales compared to $113.5 million in 2014.

U.S. Cellular's loss on equipment, defined as equipment sales revenues less cost of equipment sold, was $114.3
million and $158.5 million for 2015 and 2014, respectively.  The $44.2 million decrease in loss on equipment was
driven by higher equipment installment plan sales which have a lower loss per device. In addition, lower handset sales
contributed to the decline in loss on equipment.

Selling, general and administrative expenses

Key components of the net change in Selling, general and administrative expenses were as follows:

Selling and marketing expense decreased by $6.3 million, or 3%, due primarily to decreases in labor and
commissions, partially offset by increases in advertising expenses.

• 

General and administrative expense decreased by $16.6 million, or 8%, due primarily to lower consulting
expenses related to the billing system updates and customer service operations and lower rates for roaming
administration.

• 

(Gain) loss on asset disposals, net

(Gain) loss on asset disposals, net was a loss in both 2015 and 2014 due primarily to write-offs and disposals of
certain network assets.

(Gain) loss on sale of business and other exit costs, net

The net gains in 2015 and in 2014 were due primarily to the continuing impact of the Divestiture Transaction.  See
Note 6 — Acquisitions, Divestitures and Exchanges in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional
information.
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(Gain) loss on license sales and exchanges, net

The net gain in 2015 was due primarily to the license exchange of certain of U.S. Cellular’s PCS and AWS licenses for
certain other PCS and AWS licenses and cash.  See Note 6 — Acquisitions, Divestitures and Exchanges in the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information.
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Components of Other Income (Expense)

Three Months
Ended
September 30,

2015 2014 Change
Percentage

Change
(Dollars in
thousands,
except per
share amounts)
Operating
income (loss) $77,725 $(51,354) $129,079 >100%

Equity in
earnings of
unconsolidated
entities

39,674 35,971 3,703 10%

Interest and
dividend
income

9,299 3,572 5,727 >100%

Interest
expense (21,121) (13,514) (7,607) (56)%

Other, net 78 95 (17) (18)%
Total
investment and
other income

27,930 26,124 1,806 7%

Income before
income taxes 105,655 (25,230) 130,885 >100%

Income tax
expense
(benefit)

40,634 (1,459) 42,093 >100%

Net income
(loss) 65,021 (23,771) 88,792 >100%

Less: Net
income (loss)
attributable to

  noncontrolling
interests, net of
tax

1,427 (1,606) 3,033 >100%

Net income
(loss)
attributable to
U.S. Cellular

  shareholders

$63,594 $(22,165) $85,759 >100%
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Basic earnings
(loss) per share
attributable to

  U.S. Cellular
shareholders

$0.75 $(0.26) $1.01 >100%

Diluted
earnings (loss)
per share
attributable to

  U.S. Cellular
shareholders

$0.75 $(0.26) $1.01 >100%

Equity in earnings of unconsolidated entities

Equity in earnings of unconsolidated entities represents U.S. Cellular’s share of net income from entities in which it
has a noncontrolling interest and that are accounted for by the equity method.

U.S. Cellular’s investment in the Los Angeles SMSA Limited Partnership (“LA Partnership”) contributed $18.8 million
and $18.2 million to Equity in earnings of unconsolidated entities in 2015 and 2014, respectively.  See Note 8 —
Investments in Unconsolidated Entities in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information.

Interest and dividend income

Interest and dividend income increased due to imputed interest income recognized on equipment installment plans of
$9.0 million and $2.7 million in 2015 and 2014, respectively.  See Note 3 — Equipment Installment Plans in the Notes
to the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information.

Interest expense

The increase in interest expense was due primarily to interest expense related to the $275 million of 7.25% Unsecured
Notes which were sold in December 2014 and interest expense on borrowings from the Term Loan.  Interest cost
capitalized was $1.4 million and $1.7 million for 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Income tax expense (benefit)

See Note 4 — Income Taxes in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional discussion of the overall
effective tax rate on Income before income taxes.

Net income (loss) attributable to noncontrolling interests, net of tax

The increase from 2014 to 2015 is due primarily to higher income from certain partnerships in 2015.
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RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

See Note 1 — Basis of Presentation in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for information on recent
accounting pronouncements.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

CASH FLOWS

U.S. Cellular operates a capital- and marketing-intensive business. U.S. Cellular utilizes cash on hand, cash from
operating activities, cash proceeds from divestitures and dispositions of investments, short-term credit facilities and
long-term debt financing to fund its acquisitions (including licenses), construction costs, operating expenses and share
repurchases. Cash flows may fluctuate from quarter to quarter and year to year due to seasonality, the timing of
acquisitions and divestitures, capital expenditures and other factors. The table below and the following discussion
summarize U.S. Cellular's cash flow activities for the nine months ended September 30, 2015 and 2014.

2015 2014
(Dollars in thousands)
Cash flows from (used in):
Operating activities $555,455 $330,631 
Investing activities (376,910) (308,147)
Financing activities 206,708 (90,751)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents $385,253 $(68,267)

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

An increase in cash flows from operating activities was due primarily to improved net income and working capital
factors.  Future cash flows from operating activities may be impacted by distributions from investments in
unconsolidated entities.  Distributions from unconsolidated entities in 2015 and 2014 were $45.0 million and $74.9
million, respectively.  U.S. Cellular holds a 5.5% interest in the LA Partnership.  U.S. Cellular has been informed by
the general partner of the LA Partnership that, in connection with the acquisition of a spectrum license covering the
LA Partnership’s market in FCC Auction 97, the LA Partnership will not make a cash distribution in 2015. 
Notwithstanding the lack of a cash distribution, U.S. Cellular will be obligated to make tax payments on its share of
any taxable income reported by the LA Partnership in 2015 and beyond.  U.S. Cellular currently expects that it might
receive a cash distribution in the latter half of 2016, although the amount of any such distribution is uncertain.  During
the nine months ended September 30, 2014 and the twelve months ended December 31, 2014, U.S. Cellular received
cash distributions of $35.8 million and $60.5 million, respectively, from the LA Partnership.

U.S. Cellular’s future federal income tax liabilities associated with the benefits realized in prior periods from bonus
depreciation are accrued as a component of Net deferred income tax liability (noncurrent) in the Consolidated Balance
Sheet.  Currently, there is no federal bonus depreciation deduction allowed for 2015 and future periods.  Therefore,
depending on U.S. Cellular’s future pretax income levels, U.S. Cellular’s federal income tax payments could increase in
2015 and remain at a higher level for several years as the amount of U.S. Cellular’s federal tax depreciation deductions
decrease.  This expectation of potentially higher federal income tax payments in 2015 and subsequent years assumes
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that federal bonus depreciation provisions are not enacted in 2015 or future periods.  To the extent further federal
bonus depreciation provisions are enacted, this expectation would change and may have an impact on the overall level
of operating cash flows in the future.

Cash Flows from Investing Activities 

U.S. Cellular makes substantial investments to acquire wireless licenses and properties and to construct and upgrade
wireless telecommunications networks and facilities as a basis for creating long-term value for shareholders. In recent
years, rapid changes in technology and new opportunities have required substantial investments in potentially
revenue‑enhancing and cost-reducing upgrades of U.S. Cellular’s networks.

Cash used for additions to property, plant and equipment totaled $406.6 million in 2015 and $424.8 million in 2014,
and is reported in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows.  Capital expenditures (i.e., additions to property, plant
and equipment and system development expenditures), which include the effects of accruals and capitalized interest,
totaled $334.9 million in 2015 and $376.0 million in 2014.  See Capital Expenditures below for additional information
on capital expenditures.

During 2015, a $278.3 million payment was made by Advantage Spectrum L.P. to the FCC for licenses for which it
was the provisional winning bidder.  See Note 6 — Acquisitions, Divestitures and Exchanges and Note 10 — Variable
Interest Entities in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information.
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Cash received from Divestitures and Exchanges, which is a component of cash flows from investing activities in the
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows, is shown below.

2015 2014
(Dollars in
thousands)
Licenses $145,000 $91,789 
Businesses
(1) 169,352 52,012 

Total $314,352 $143,801 

(1)

Amount includes cash
proceeds received from
the sale of 359 towers
and reimbursements
related to the
Divestiture Transaction.

See Note 6 — Acquisitions, Divestitures and Exchanges in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional
information related to these divestitures.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities 

Cash flows from financing activities include proceeds from and repayments of long-term debt, distributions to
noncontrolling interests, cash used to repurchase Common Shares and cash proceeds from reissuance of Common
Shares pursuant to stock-based compensation plans.   In July 2015, U.S. Cellular borrowed $225 million on its Term
Loan.  See Financing section below for additional discussion.

Adjusted Free Cash Flow

The following table presents Adjusted free cash flow. Adjusted free cash flow is defined as Cash flows from operating
activities (which includes cash outflows related to the Sprint decommissioning), as adjusted for cash proceeds from
the Sprint Cost Reimbursement (which are included in Cash flows from investing activities in the Consolidated
Statement of Cash Flows), less Cash used for additions to property, plant and equipment. Adjusted free cash flow is a
non-GAAP financial measure which U.S. Cellular believes may be useful to investors and other users of its financial
information in evaluating the amount of cash generated by business operations (including cash proceeds from the
Sprint Cost Reimbursement), after Cash used for additions to property, plant and equipment.

Nine Months Ended
September 30, 2015 2014

(Dollars in thousands)
Cash flows from operating
activities $555,455 $330,631 

Add: Sprint Cost
Reimbursement (1) 27,596 52,012 

Less: Cash used for
additions to property, plant

406,596 424,774 
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and equipment
Adjusted free cash flow $176,455 $(42,131)

(1)

See Note 6 — Acquisitions, Divestitures and
Exchanges in the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements for additional information
related to the Sprint Cost Reimbursement.

See Cash Flows from Operating Activities and Cash Flows from Investing Activities for additional information related
to the components of Adjusted free cash flow.

LIQUIDITY

U.S. Cellular believes that existing cash and investment balances, funds available under its revolving credit facility,
and expected cash flows from operating and investing activities provide substantial liquidity and financial flexibility
for U.S. Cellular to meet its normal day-to-day operating needs and debt service requirements.  However, these
resources may not be adequate to fund all future expenditures that the company could potentially elect to make such as
acquisitions of spectrum licenses in FCC auctions and other acquisition, construction and development programs.  It
may be necessary from time to time to increase the size of the existing revolving credit facility, to put in place new
credit facilities, or to obtain other forms of financing in order to fund these potential expenditures.  To the extent that
sufficient funds are not available to U.S. Cellular or its subsidiaries on terms or at prices acceptable to U.S. Cellular, it
could require U.S. Cellular to reduce its acquisition, capital expenditure, business development and share repurchase
programs.

U.S. Cellular cannot provide assurances that circumstances that could have a material adverse effect on its liquidity or
capital resources will not occur. Economic conditions, changes in financial markets, U.S. Cellular financial
performance and/or prospects or other factors could restrict U.S. Cellular’s liquidity and availability of financing on
terms and prices acceptable to U.S. Cellular, which could require U.S. Cellular to reduce its acquisition, capital
expenditure, business development and share repurchase programs. Such reductions could have a material adverse
effect on U.S. Cellular’s business, financial condition or results of operations.
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Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or less.  The primary objective of U.S. Cellular’s Cash and cash equivalents investment activities is to preserve
principal.  At September 30, 2015, the majority of U.S. Cellular’s Cash and cash equivalents was held in bank deposit
accounts and in money market funds that invest exclusively in U.S. Treasury Notes or in repurchase agreements fully
collateralized by such obligations.  U.S. Cellular monitors the financial viability of the money market funds and direct
investments in which it invests and believes that the credit risk associated with these investments is low.

Financing

As of September 30, 2015, U.S. Cellular’s unused capacity under its revolving credit facility was $282.5 million.  This
credit facility matures in December 2017.  In July 2015, U.S. Cellular borrowed $225 million on its Term Loan.  U.S.
Cellular believes it was in compliance with all of the financial covenants and requirements set forth in its revolving
credit facility and Term Loan as of September 30, 2015.

U.S. Cellular has in place an effective $500 million shelf registration statement on Form S-3 to issue senior or
subordinated debt securities.

The proceeds from any of the aforementioned financing facilities are available for general corporate purposes,
including spectrum purchases and capital expenditures.

The long-term debt payments due for the remainder of 2015 and the next four years represent less than 4% of U.S.
Cellular’s total long-term debt obligation measured as of September 30, 2015.

Capital Expenditures

U.S. Cellular’s capital expenditures for 2015 are expected to be approximately $600 million. These expenditures are
expected to be for the following general purposes: 

Expand and enhance network coverage, including providing additional capacity to accommodate increased
network usage, principally data usage, by current customers;

• 

Deploy 4G LTE technology in certain markets;• 
Expand and enhance the retail store network; and• 

Develop and enhance office systems.• 

U.S. Cellular plans to finance its capital expenditures program for 2015 using primarily Cash flows from operating
activities and, as necessary, existing cash balances and borrowings under its revolving credit agreements and/or other
long-term debt.

Acquisitions, Divestitures and Exchanges

U.S. Cellular assesses its existing wireless interests on an ongoing basis with a goal of improving the competitiveness
of its operations and maximizing its long-term return on investment. As part of this strategy, U.S. Cellular reviews
attractive opportunities to acquire additional wireless operating markets and wireless spectrum. In addition,
U.S. Cellular may seek to divest outright or include in exchanges for other wireless interests those interests that are
not strategic to its long-term success. As a result, U.S. Cellular may be engaged from time to time in negotiations
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relating to the acquisition, divestiture or exchange of companies, properties or wireless spectrum. In general,
U.S. Cellular may not disclose such transactions until there is a definitive agreement.  See Note 6 — Acquisitions,
Divestitures and Exchanges in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information related to
significant transactions, including expected pre-tax cash proceeds from such transactions in 2015.

Variable Interest Entities

U.S. Cellular consolidates certain entities because they are “variable interest entities” under accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”). See Note 10 — Variable Interest Entities in the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information related to these variable interest entities. U.S. Cellular
may elect to make additional capital contributions and/or advances to these variable interest entities in future periods
in order to fund their operations.

U.S. Cellular currently provides 4G LTE service in conjunction with King Street Wireless L.P.  Aquinas Wireless L.P.
has not yet developed long-term business plans.  Advantage Spectrum L.P. will develop its long-term business plans
after it is granted licenses by the FCC.  These licenses have not yet been granted.
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Common Share Repurchase Program

In the past year, U.S. Cellular has repurchased and expects to continue to repurchase its Common Shares, subject to its
repurchase program. For additional information related to the current repurchase authorization and repurchases made
during 2015 and 2014, see Note 11 — Common Share Repurchases in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
and Part II, Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds.

Contractual and Other Obligations

There were no material changes outside the ordinary course of business between December 31, 2014 and September
30, 2015 to the Contractual and Other Obligations disclosed in Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations included in U.S. Cellular’s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2014,
except for U.S. Cellular’s borrowing of $225 million under the Term Loan in July 2015.  See Note 9 — Debt in the Notes
to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

U.S. Cellular had no transactions, agreements or other contractual arrangements with unconsolidated entities
involving “off-balance sheet arrangements,” as defined by SEC rules, that had or are reasonably likely to have a material
current or future effect on its financial condition, changes in financial condition, revenues or expenses, results of
operations, liquidity, capital expenditures or capital resources.
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APPLICATION OF CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES 

U.S. Cellular prepares its consolidated financial statements in accordance with GAAP.  U.S. Cellular’s significant
accounting policies are discussed in detail in Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Recent
Accounting Pronouncements in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements and U.S. Cellular’s Application of
Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates is discussed in detail in Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations, both of which are included in U.S. Cellular’s Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2014.  There were no material changes to U.S. Cellular’s application of critical accounting
policies and estimates during the nine months ended September 30, 2015.

CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

The closing of the sale of 359 towers in January 2015 as discussed in Note 6 — Acquisitions, Divestitures and
Exchanges to the Consolidated Financial Statements included a related party transaction with Airadigm
Communications, Inc., a subsidiary of TDS.  The information relating to this related party transaction was disclosed in
Note 6 to the Consolidated Financial Statements of U.S. Cellular’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2014 and is incorporated by reference herein.  
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PRIVATE SECURITIES LITIGATION REFORM ACT OF 1995

SAFE HARBOR CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

This Form 10-Q, including exhibits, contains statements that are not based on historical facts and represent
forward-looking statements, as this term is defined in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.  All
statements, other than statements of historical facts, that address activities, events or developments that U.S. Cellular
intends, expects, projects, believes, estimates, plans or anticipates will or may occur in the future are forward-looking
statements.  The words “believes,” “anticipates,” “estimates,” “expects,” “plans,” “intends,” “projects” and similar expressions are
intended to identify these forward-looking statements, but are not the exclusive means of identifying them.  Such
forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that may cause actual
results, events or developments to be significantly different from any future results, events or developments expressed
or implied by such forward-looking statements.  Such risks, uncertainties and other factors include those set forth
below, as more fully described under “Risk Factors” in U.S. Cellular’s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2014.  However, such factors are not necessarily all of the important factors that could cause actual results,
performance or achievements to differ materially from those expressed in, or implied by, the forward-looking
statements contained in this document.  Other unknown or unpredictable factors also could have material adverse
effects on future results, performance or achievements.  U.S. Cellular undertakes no obligation to update publicly any
forward-looking statements whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.  You should carefully
consider the Risk Factors in U.S. Cellular’s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2014, the following factors
and other information contained in, or incorporated by reference into, this Form 10-Q to understand the material risks
relating to U.S. Cellular’s business.

Intense competition in the markets in which U.S. Cellular operates could adversely affect U.S. Cellular’s
revenues or increase its costs to compete.

• 

A failure by U.S. Cellular to successfully execute its business strategy (including planned acquisitions,
divestitures and exchanges) or allocate resources or capital could have an adverse effect on U.S. Cellular’s
business, financial condition or results of operations.

• 

U.S. Cellular offers customers the option to purchase certain devices under installment contracts, which
creates certain risks and uncertainties which could have an adverse impact on U.S. Cellular's financial
condition or results of operations.

• 

Changes in roaming practices or other factors could cause U.S. Cellular's roaming revenues to decline from
current levels and/or impact U.S. Cellular's ability to service its customers in geographic areas where U.S.
Cellular does not have its own network, which could have an adverse effect on U.S. Cellular's business,
financial condition or results of operations.

• 

A failure by U.S. Cellular to obtain access to adequate radio spectrum to meet current or anticipated future
needs and/or to accurately predict future needs for radio spectrum could have an adverse effect on U.S.
Cellular’s business, financial condition or results of operations.

• 

To the extent conducted by the Federal Communications Commission (“FCC”), U.S. Cellular is likely to
participate in FCC auctions of additional spectrum in the future as an applicant or as a noncontrolling partner
in another auction applicant and, during certain periods, will be subject to the FCC’s anti-collusion rules,
which could have an adverse effect on U.S. Cellular.

• 

Changes in the regulatory environment or a failure by U.S. Cellular to timely or fully comply with any
applicable regulatory requirements could adversely affect U.S. Cellular’s business, financial condition or
results of operations.

• 
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An inability to attract people of outstanding potential, to develop their potential through education and
assignments, and to retain them by keeping them engaged, challenged and properly rewarded could have an
adverse effect on U.S. Cellular's business, financial condition or results of operations.

• 

U.S. Cellular’s assets are concentrated in the U.S. wireless telecommunications industry. As a result, its results
of operations may fluctuate based on factors related primarily to conditions in this industry.

• 

U.S. Cellular’s lower scale relative to larger competitors could adversely affect its business, financial condition
or results of operations.   

• 

Changes in various business factors could have an adverse effect on U.S. Cellular’s business, financial
condition or results of operations.

• 

Advances or changes in technology could render certain technologies used by U.S. Cellular obsolete, could
put U.S. Cellular at a competitive disadvantage, could reduce U.S. Cellular’s revenues or could increase its
costs of doing business.

• 

Complexities associated with deploying new technologies present substantial risk.• 
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U.S. Cellular is subject to numerous surcharges and fees from federal, state and local governments, and the
applicability and the amount of these fees are subject to great uncertainty.

• 

Performance under device purchase agreements could have a material adverse impact on U.S. Cellular's
business, financial condition or results of operations.

• 

Changes in U.S. Cellular’s enterprise value, changes in the market supply or demand for wireless licenses,
adverse developments in the business or the industry in which U.S. Cellular is involved and/or other factors
could require U.S. Cellular to recognize impairments in the carrying value of its licenses, goodwill and/or
physical assets.

• 

Costs, integration problems or other factors associated with acquisitions, divestitures or exchanges of
properties or licenses and/or expansion of U.S. Cellular’s business could have an adverse effect on
U.S. Cellular’s business, financial condition or results of operations.

• 

U.S. Cellular’s investments in unproven technologies may not produce the benefits that U.S. Cellular expects.• 
A failure by U.S. Cellular to complete significant network construction and systems implementation activities
as part of its plans to improve the quality, coverage, capabilities and capacity of its network, support and other
systems and infrastructure could have an adverse effect on its operations.

• 

Difficulties involving third parties with which U.S. Cellular does business, including changes in U.S.
Cellular's relationships with or financial or operational difficulties of key suppliers or independent agents and
third party national retailers who market U.S. Cellular services, could adversely affect U.S. Cellular’s business,
financial condition or results of operations.

• 

U.S. Cellular has significant investments in entities that it does not control. Losses in the value of such
investments could have an adverse effect on U.S. Cellular’s financial condition or results of operations.

• 

A failure by U.S. Cellular to maintain flexible and capable telecommunication networks or information
technology, or a material disruption thereof, could have an adverse effect on U.S. Cellular’s business, financial
condition or results of operations.

• 

U.S. Cellular has experienced and, in the future, expects to experience cyber-attacks or other breaches of
network or information technology security of varying degrees on a regular basis, which could have an
adverse effect on U.S. Cellular's business, financial condition or results of operations.

• 

The market price of U.S. Cellular’s Common Shares is subject to fluctuations due to a variety of factors.• 
Changes in facts or circumstances, including new or additional information, could require U.S. Cellular to
record charges in excess of amounts accrued in the financial statements, which could have an adverse effect
on U.S. Cellular’s business, financial condition or results of operations.

• 

Disruption in credit or other financial markets, a deterioration of U.S. or global economic conditions or other
events could, among other things, impede U.S. Cellular’s access to or increase the cost of financing its
operating and investment activities and/or result in reduced revenues and lower operating income and cash
flows, which would have an adverse effect on U.S. Cellular’s business, financial condition or results of
operations.

• 

Uncertainty of U.S. Cellular’s ability to access capital, deterioration in the capital markets, other changes in
market conditions, changes in U.S. Cellular’s credit ratings or other factors could limit or restrict the
availability of financing on terms and prices acceptable to U.S. Cellular, which could require U.S. Cellular to
reduce its construction, development or acquisition programs.

• 

Settlements, judgments, restraints on its current or future manner of doing business and/or legal costs resulting
from pending and future litigation could have an adverse effect on U.S. Cellular’s business, financial condition
or results of operations.

• 

The possible development of adverse precedent in litigation or conclusions in professional studies to the effect
that radio frequency emissions from wireless devices and/or cell sites cause harmful health consequences,
including cancer or tumors, or may interfere with various electronic medical devices such as pacemakers,
could have an adverse effect on U.S. Cellular’s business, financial condition or results of operations.

• 
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Claims of infringement of intellectual property and proprietary rights of others, primarily involving patent
infringement claims, could prevent U.S. Cellular from using necessary technology to provide products or
services or subject U.S. Cellular

• 
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to expensive intellectual property litigation or monetary penalties, which could have an adverse effect on U.S.
Cellular’s business, financial condition or results of operations.

• 

There are potential conflicts of interests between TDS and U.S. Cellular.• 
Certain matters, such as control by TDS and provisions in the U.S. Cellular Restated Certificate of Incorporation,
may serve to discourage or make more difficult a change in control of U.S. Cellular.

• 

Any of the foregoing events or other events could cause revenues, earnings, capital expenditures and/or any other
financial or statistical information to vary from U.S. Cellular’s forward-looking estimates by a material amount.

• 

Item 3.  Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

MARKET RISK

Refer to the disclosure under Market Risk in U.S. Cellular’s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2014 for
additional information, including information regarding required principal payments and the weighted average interest
rates related to U.S. Cellular’s Long-term debt. There have been no material changes to such information since
December 31, 2014, except for U.S. Cellular’s borrowing of $225 million under the Term Loan in July 2015.

See Note 2 — Fair Value Measurements in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information
related to the fair value of U.S. Cellular’s Long-term debt as of September 30, 2015.

Item 4.  Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

U.S. Cellular maintains disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”)) that are designed to ensure that information
required to be disclosed in its reports filed or submitted under the Exchange Act is processed, recorded, summarized
and reported within the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange Commission’s (“SEC”) rules and forms,
and that such information is accumulated and communicated to U.S. Cellular’s management, including its principal
executive officer and principal financial officer, as appropriate, to allow for timely decisions regarding required
disclosure.  In designing and evaluating the disclosure controls and procedures, management recognizes that any
controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of
achieving the desired control objectives.

As required by SEC Rule 13a-15(b), U.S. Cellular carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the
participation of management, including its principal executive officer and principal financial officer, of the
effectiveness of the design and operation of U.S. Cellular’s disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the
period covered by this Quarterly Report.  Based on this evaluation, U.S. Cellular’s principal executive officer and
principal financial officer concluded that U.S. Cellular’s disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of
September 30, 2015, at the reasonable assurance level.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Internal controls over financial reporting continue to be updated as necessary to accommodate modifications to our
business processes and accounting procedures.  As previously disclosed in U.S. Cellular’s Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2014, U.S. Cellular entered into certain arrangements in the latter part of the fourth quarter of
2014 pursuant to which U.S. Cellular now outsources certain support functions for its Billing and Operational Support
System (“B/OSS”) to a third-party vendor.  In accordance with this change and effective January 1, 2015, U.S. Cellular
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is placing reliance on certain third-party controls with respect to the B/OSS environment.  There have been no other
changes in internal controls over financial reporting that have occurred during the quarter ended September 30, 2015
that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, U.S. Cellular’s internal control over financial
reporting.

Part II.  Other Information

Item 1.  Legal Proceedings.

Refer to the disclosure under Legal Proceedings in U.S. Cellular’s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2014. 
There have been no material changes to such information since December 31, 2014.
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Item 1A.  Risk Factors.

In addition to the information set forth in this Form 10-Q, you should carefully consider the factors discussed in Part I,
“Item 1A. Risk Factors” in U.S. Cellular’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2014, which
could materially affect U.S. Cellular’s business, financial condition or future results. The risks described in this Form
10-Q and the Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2014, may not be the only risks that could affect U.S.
Cellular.  Additional unidentified or unrecognized risks and uncertainties could materially adversely affect U.S.
Cellular’s business, financial condition and/or operating results.  Subject to the foregoing, U.S. Cellular has not
identified for disclosure any material changes to the risk factors as previously disclosed in U.S. Cellular’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2014.

Item 2.  Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds.

On November 17, 2009, the Board of Directors of U.S. Cellular authorized the repurchase of up to 1,300,000
Common Shares on an annual basis beginning in 2009 and continuing each year thereafter, on a cumulative basis. 
Depending on market conditions, such shares may be repurchased in compliance with Rule 10b-18 of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended ("Exchange Act"), pursuant to Rule 10b5-1 under the Exchange Act, or pursuant
to accelerated share repurchase arrangements, prepaid share repurchases, private transactions or as otherwise
authorized.  This authorization does not have an expiration date.

The following table provides certain information with respect to all purchases made by or on behalf of U.S. Cellular,
and any open market purchases made by any “affiliated purchaser” (as defined by the SEC) of U.S. Cellular, of U.S.
Cellular Common Shares during the quarter covered by this Form 10-Q.

Period
Total Number
of Shares
Purchased

Average
Price Paid
per Share

Total Number of Shares
Purchased as Part of
Publicly Announced Plans
or Programs

Maximum Number of
Shares that May Yet Be
Purchased Under the Plans
or Programs

July 1 – 31, 2015 36,648 $ 34.81 36,648 4,829,949 
August 1 – 31, 2015 1,600 35.02 1,600 4,828,349 
September 1 – 30, 2015 49,421 34.98 49,421 4,778,928 
Total for or as of the
end of the quarter ended
September 30, 2015

87,669 $ 34.91 87,669 4,778,928 

The following is additional information with respect to the Common Share authorization:

The date the program was announced was November 20, 2009 by Form 8-K.i. 
The amount approved was up to 1,300,000 U.S. Cellular Common Shares on an annual basis in 2009 and
continuing each year thereafter on a cumulative basis.

ii. 

There is no expiration date for the program.iii. 
The authorization did not expire during the third quarter of 2015.iv. 
U.S. Cellular did not determine to terminate the foregoing Common Share repurchase program, or cease
making further purchases thereunder, during the third quarter of 2015.

v. 
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Item 5.  Other Information.

The following information is being provided to update prior disclosures made pursuant to the requirements of Form
8-K, Item 2.03 — Creation of a Direct Financial Obligation or an Obligation Under an Off-Balance Sheet Arrangement
of a Registrant.

U.S. Cellular did not borrow or repay any cash amounts under its revolving credit facility in the third quarter of 2015
or through the filing date of this Form 10-Q. U.S. Cellular had no cash borrowings outstanding under its revolving
credit facility as of September 30, 2015 or as of the filing date of this Form 10-Q. 

A description of U.S. Cellular’s revolving credit facility is included in U.S. Cellular’s Current Report on Form 8-K
dated December 17, 2010, as such description is amended by Item 1.01 in U.S. Cellular’s Current Report on Form 8-K
dated July 24, 2014, and is incorporated by reference herein.   
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Item 6.  Exhibits.

Exhibit 4.1 — Term Loan Credit Agreement dated as of January 21, 2015 between U.S. Cellular and CoBank ACB,
including exhibits, is hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to U.S. Cellular’s Current Report on Form 8-K
dated January 21, 2015.

Exhibit 10.1 — Form of Long-Term Incentive Plan Stock Option Award Agreement for Officers other than the President
and CEO, is hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to U.S. Cellular’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated
February 26, 2015.

Exhibit 10.2 — Form of Long-Term Incentive Plan Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement for Officers other than the
President and CEO, is hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to U.S. Cellular’s Current Report on Form 8-K
dated February 26, 2015.

Exhibit 10.3 — Form of Long-Term Incentive Plan Stock Option Award Agreement for the President and CEO, is
hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to U.S. Cellular’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated February 26,
2015.

Exhibit 10.4 — Form of Long-Term Incentive Plan Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement for the President and CEO,
is hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to U.S. Cellular’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated February 26,
2015.

Exhibit 10.5 — United States Cellular Corporation 2015 Officer Annual Incentive Plan effective January 1, 2015, is
hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to U.S. Cellular’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated April 17, 2015.

Exhibit 11 — Statement regarding computation of per share earnings is included herein as Note 5 — Earnings Per Share in
the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Exhibit 12 — Statement regarding computation of ratio of earnings to fixed charges.

Exhibit 31.1 — Principal executive officer certification pursuant to Rule 13a-14 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

Exhibit 31.2 — Principal financial officer certification pursuant to Rule 13a-14 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

Exhibit 32.1 — Principal executive officer certification pursuant to Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the United
States Code.

Exhibit 32.2 — Principal financial officer certification pursuant to Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the United
States Code.

Exhibit 101.INS — XBRL Instance Document

Exhibit 101.SCH — XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

Exhibit 101.PRE — XBRL Taxonomy Presentation Linkbase Document

Exhibit 101.CAL — XBRL Taxonomy Calculation Linkbase Document
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Exhibit 101.LAB — XBRL Taxonomy Label Linkbase Document

Exhibit 101.DEF — XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document

The foregoing exhibits include only the exhibits that relate specifically to this Form 10-Q or that supplement the
exhibits identified in U.S. Cellular’s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2014.  Reference is made to U.S.
Cellular’s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2014 for a complete list of exhibits, which are incorporated
herein except to the extent supplemented or superseded above.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

UNITED STATES CELLULAR
CORPORATION
(Registrant)

Date:October 30, 2015 /s/ Kenneth R. Meyers
Kenneth R. Meyers

President and Chief Executive Officer

(principal executive officer)

Date:October 30, 2015 /s/ Steven T. Campbell
Steven T. Campbell

Executive Vice President-Finance,

Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

(principal financial officer)

Date:October 30, 2015 /s/ Douglas D. Shuma
Douglas D. Shuma

Chief Accounting Officer

(principal accounting officer)

Date:October 30, 2015 /s/ Kristin A. MacCarthy
Kristin A. MacCarthy

Vice President and Controller
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